




1 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

-g]kfn /fi^« a}+saf^ æ#Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt ljQLo ;+:yf_
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, ag]kf–!), sfe|]knf~rf]s
kmf]g g+=M )!!–^^%%&@, )!!–^^%%&#

bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efsf]] ;"rgf

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ldlt @)*)÷!!÷!& ut] laxLaf/ a;]sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] !^% cf}+ a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ o; 
;+:yfsf] bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg lnlvt ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf b]xfosf k|:tfjx? pk/ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o 
ug{ a:g] ePsf] x'Fbf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf ^& cg';f/ ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/L tyf pkl:yltsf] 
nflu of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 .  

;ef x'g] ldlt, ;do / :yfg M

ldlt	 M @)*)÷!@÷!^ ut] z'qmjf/, -tb\g';f/ @( dfr{, @)@$_ 		

;do	 M laxfg !)M#) ah] .

:yfg	 M w'lnv]n nh l/;f]6{ w'lnv]n, sfe|]knf~rf]s . 

%nkmnsf] ljifo ;"rL M

s= ;fdfGo k|:tfj M

!=	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfHo"åf/f k|:t't x'g] cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 5nkmn 
u/L kfl/t ug{] .

@=	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] @)*) cfiff9 d;fGt;Ddsf] jf;nft tyf cf=j= @)&(÷*) sf] gfkmf  
gf]S;fg lx;fa, gub k|jfx ljj/0f ;lxtsf] ljQLo ljj/0fx? -cg';"rLx? ;d]t_ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ .

#=	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cf=j=@)*)÷*! sf] n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{ ug{sf] nflu n]vfk/LIfs lgo'lQm Pj+ lghsf] 
kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug{] . -o; cl3 lgo'Qm n]vfk/LIfs >L s'j]/ Pg e§/fO{ P08 sDkgL rf68{ PsfpG6]06;\ 
k'gM lgo'lQmsf] nflu u|fx\o x'g'x'G5 _

$=	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd xfn sfod r'Qmf k'FhL ?=!,)*,$@,)^,@!(.%# -cIf/]kL Ps ca{ 
cf7 s/f]8 aofln; nfv 5 xhf/ b'O{ ;o pGgfO; k};f lqkGg dfq_ sf] &=% k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd  
?= *,!#,!%,$^^.$^ -cIf/]kL cf7 s/f]8 t]x| nfv kGw| xhf/ rf/ ;o 5};¶L k};f 5\ofln; dfq_ s/ k|of]hg 
;lxt gub nfef+z ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj kfl/t ug]{ .

%=	 ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ $ hgf tyf ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ @ hgf 
;~rfnsx?sf] lgjf{rg ;DaGwdf .

^= 	 ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 ePsf] :jtGq ;~rfnssf] lgo'lQmnfO{ cg'df]bg ug]{ .

v= ljz]if k|:tfj M

!=  	cf=j=@)&(÷*) sf] d'gfkmfaf6 xfn sfod r'Qmf k'FhL ?=!,)*,$@,)^,@!(.%# -cIf/]kL Ps ca{ cf7 s/f]8 
aofln; nfv 5 xhf/ b'O{ ;o pGgfO; k};f lqkGg dfq_ sf] &=% k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd ?=*,!#,!%,$^^.$^ 
-cIf/]kL cf7 s/f]8 t]x| nfv kGw| xhf/ rf/ ;o 5};¶L k};f 5\ofln; dfq_ a/fa/ cyf{t !))M&=% cg'kftsf] 
af]g; z]o/ hf/L u/L ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?=!,!^,%%,@!,^*%.(( -cIf/]kL Ps ca{ ;f]x| s/f]8 krkGg nfv 
PSsfO; xhf/ 5 ;o krf;L k};f pgfG;o dfq_ k'¥ofpg] ljz]if k|:tfjnfO{ kfl/t ug]{ .

@=  ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ -s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{no afudtL k|b]z sf7df8f}+ lhNnf a'9flgns07 gu/kflnsf j8f g+= * df 
:yfgfGt/0f ug]{ .



2 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

#=  ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks / ;j{;fwf/0fsf] z]o/ k'FhLsf] cg'kft &) k|ltzt / #) k|ltzt sfod ug{ cfly{s jif{ 
@)&(÷*) sf] jf]g; z]o/ ljt/0f kZrft\ sfod x'g] ;+:yfks / ;j{;fwf/0fsf] z]o/ k'FhLsf] cg'kft ldnfg 
ubf{ gk'u ePsf] ;j{;fwf/0f tkm{sf] hDdf ?= ^,^(,(),)@^.*) -cIf/]kL 5 s/f]8 pgfG;Q/L nfv gAa] xhf/ 
5lAa; k};f c;L dfq_ cyf{t ^,^(,())=@& lsQf ;fwf/0f z]o/ lk|ldoddf ;DalGwt lgsfoaf6 :jLs[lt 
lnO{ yk ;fj{hlgs lgisfzg (Further Public Offering) sf] dfWodaf6 z]o/ hf/L ug{] / pQm sfo{sf] nflu 
lgodgsf/L lgsfosf] lgb{]zg adf]lhd ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq tyf lgodfjnL ;+zf]wg nufot cGo ;Dk"0f{ sfo{ 
ug{] clVtof/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ k|bfg ug{] .

$= 	k|jGwkqsf] bkmf @ -!_, bkmf ^ -v_ / bkmf ^ -u_ tyf lgodfjnLsf] lgod @ ;+zf]wg ug{] ;fy} k|aGwkq tyf 
lgodfjnLsf] bkmf tyf lgodx?df cfjZos yk36, kl/dfh{g Pjd\ ;+zf]wg ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ 
clVtof/L k|bfg ug{] .

-u_	 ljljw	
;fwf/)f ;ef ;DaGwL cGo ;fdfGo hfgsf/L M

!=	 o; ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng tyf nfef+z k|of]hgsf] nflu ;+:yfsf] z]o/ bflvn vf/]hsf] sfd ldlt @)*)÷!!÷#) ut]  
b]lv @)*)÷!@÷!^ ut];Dd aGb /xg] 5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8df ldlt @)*)÷!!÷@( ut];Dd sf/f]jf/  
eO k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ PgcfO{Pdlj P; Soflk6n ln= nflhDkf6, sf7df8f}+df 
k|fKt z]o/ gfd;f/Lsf] lnvtsf] cfwf/df z]o/wgL btf{ lstfjdf sfod z]o/wgLx?n] dfq o; ;efdf efu 
lng kfpg] 5g\\ .

@=	 n]vfk/LIfsf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt ;+:yfsf] bzf} aflif{s k|lta]bg z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ x'nfs ;]jf dfkm{t k7fOg] 5 .  
syd\ sbflrt ;f] k|fKt gePdf k|ltj]bgsf] nflu ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 www.nationalmicrofinance.com.np  
df x]g'{x'g jf ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no ag]kf !) sfe|]knf~rf]s jf ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{noaf6 
k|fKt ug{ ;lsg] 5 .

#=	 ;efdf efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{ k|ltlglw lgo'lQm ug{ rfxg'x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] ;ef z'? x'g] ;do 
eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf k|f]S;L kmf/d btf{ u/L ;Sg'kg]{ 5 . ;efdf efu 
lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf] nflu k|ltlglw lgo'lQm ul/;s]kl5 pQm k|ltlglw ab/ u/L csf]{ d's// ug]{ ePdf ;f]sf]  
lnlvt ;"rgf ;f]xL cjlwleq sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf btf{ u/fpg' kg]{ 5 .

$=	 gfjfns tyf ljlIfKt z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] tkm{jf6 sDkgLsf] z]o/ nut lstfjdf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf klxn] 
gfd pNn]v ePsf] AolQmn] ;efdf efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{ kfpg] 5 .

%=	 ;+o'Qm ?kdf z]o/ vl/b ul/Psf] cj:yfdf z]o/ nut lstfjdf klxn] gfd pNn]v ePsf] AolQm cyjf 
;j{;Ddtaf6 k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ul/Psf] Ps AolQmn] dfq ;efdf efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{ kfpg] 5 .

^=	 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] nflu pkl:ylt k'l:tsf ;ef x'g] lbg laxfgsf] !)M)) ah]af6 v'nf /xg] 5 .

&=	 cGo hfgsf/Lsf] nflu sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no ag]kf – !), sfe|]knf~rf]sdf ;Dks{ /fVgx'g jf o; 
;+:yfsf] dfly pNn]lvt j]a;fO6df x]g{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .

                                                                         ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf!fn]

                                                                             sDkgL ;lrj



3 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf k|:t't
;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg

cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*)

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjHo"x?,

o; g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, laleGg 
;+:yfx?af6 k|ltlglwTj ub}{ kfNg' ePsf dxfg'efjx?, kqsf/ Pa+ cGo cfdlGqt cltly dxf]box?nfO{ o; ;+:yfsf] 
;~rfns ;ldlt nufot d]/f] tkm{af6 ;d]t xflb{s :jfut ub{5' .   

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 /fli6«o :t/sf] “3” ju{sf] ljQLo ;+:yf xf] . of] ljQLo ;+:yf ldlt @)&) sflt{s !$ ut]  
sDkgL /lhi6««f/sf] sfof{nodf btf{ eO{ ldlt @)&!÷)@÷@* ut] g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ;+rfng cg'dlt k|fKt u/]sf]  
xf] . ldlt @)&!÷)#÷!* ut] b]lv ;fljsdf s]Gb|Lo sfof{no /x]sf] wflbË lhNnfsf] wflbËj];Laf6 sf/f]af/ z'ef/De 
u/]sf] s'/f oxFfx?nfO{ cjut} 5 . o; ;+:yfsf]] d'Vo p2]Zo n3'ljQ sfo{qmd dfkm{t\ ;dfhdf /x]sf lakGg tyf u/Lj  
au{df ljQLo kx'+r k'¥ofO ul/jL Go"lgs/0fdf / ;dfj]zL ljsf; cleofgdf 6]jf k'¥ofpg] /x]sf] 5 . To;}n] o; ;+:yfn] 
cfˆgf] :yfkgfsf] z'?b]lv g} ljkGg kl/jf/df ljQLo >f]t ;xh / ;'ne ?kdf k'¥ofpg] p2]Zon] g]kfn el/ g} n3'ljQ  
;]jf lj:tf/ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfn] ;kmntfk"j{s ;+rfngsf] gjf}+ aif{ k"/f u/L xfn bzf}+ jif{df k|j]z u/]sf] 5 . ;+:yfnfO{ 
cem ;jn / ;Ifd agfpg] p2]Zon] cf=j=@)&(÷*) df g]zgn dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 / ;dL6 
n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 Pscfk;df ufleP/ ldlt @)*)÷)#÷#) b]lv g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] 
gfdaf6 PsLs[t sf/f]jf/ z'ef/De ul/Psf] 5 .

rfn' cf=j=sf] kf}if d;fGt;Dddf lxdfn, kxf8 / t/fO{df u/L hDdf !*$ j6f zfvf sfof{nox? dfkm{t ;+:yfsf]] 
kx'+r &$ lhNnfsf @ nfv @! xhf/ eGbf a9L 3/w'/Ldf k'u]sf] s'/f oxfFx?nfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg kfpFbf dnfO{ v'zL 
nfu]sf] 5 . of] cjlwdf ;+:yfn] nueu ! nfv * xhf/ ;]jfu|fxLnfO{{ cfo cfh{g x]t'n] ljleGg kl/of]hgf ;+rfngsf] 
nflu ?=(@ ca{ %@ s/f]8 #( nfv shf{ ljt/0f u/L nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ ?= !* ca{ ^@ s/f]8 ($ nfv k'¥ofOPsf] 
5 . To;}u/L ;b:ox?jf6 ?= % ca{ @$ s/f]8 & nfv jrt ;+sng ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . ;+:yf k|ltsf] u|fxs 
;b:ox? nufot cfd ;j{;fwf/0fsf] laZjf;nfO{ sfod ub}{ ;+:yfnfO{ cem lbuf] / ;Ifd jgfpgsf] nflu lj:tf/ / 
u'0f:t/LotfnfO{ ;+u;+u} ;+t'lnt lx;fjjf6 n}hfg], cfGtl/s lgoGq0f / hf]lvd Go"lgs/0fsf] k|0ffnLnfO{ r':t, b'?:t 
/ k|efjsf/L jgfpg], u|fxsx?sf] rfxgf / cfjZostf cg'?ksf] ;]jf k|jfxtkm{ laz]if Wofg s]lGb|t ug]{, sd{rf/Lsf] 
Joj;flostf / dgf]jn pRr agfO /fVg] h:tf /0fgLlt cjnDag ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfnfO{ cem lbuf]kgf / ;Ifdtf 
k|bfg u/L /fli6«o / cGt/f{li6«o :t/df n3'ljQ If]qdf ;:yfsf] ljlzi6 klxrfg jgfpb} o;sf] ;fv pRr /fVg] nIosf 
;fy xfdL cufl8 a9L/x]sf 5f} . 

o; cj;/df d jflif{s k|ltj]bgsf] ;fy} @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtsf] ;+:yfsf] jf;nft, cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) sf] gfkmf 
gf]S;fg lx;fj, gfkmf af+8kmf8 lx;fj, gub k|jfx ljj/0f tyf cGo ;Dk"0f{ ljQLo ljj/0fx? ;efsf] :jLs[ltsf nflu 
k|:t't ub{5' . ;fy}, o; ;Ddflgt ;efdf d ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf6 ;+:yfsf] ut cfly{s jif{sf] sfo{sf] ;dLIff 
tyf rfn' cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] nflu lnO{Psf /0fgLlt tyf sfo{qmd nufotsf ljljw ljifox? k]z ug{] cg'dlt 
rfxG5' . 



4 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

-s_ 	ljut jif{x?sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M  
;+:yfsf] :yfkgfsfn b]lv ljut ( aif{sf] emns M                               -/sd ?= nfvdf_

laj/0f )&!÷&@ )&@÷&# )&#÷&$ )&$÷&% )&%÷&^ )&^÷&& )&&÷&* )&*÷&( )&(÷*)

zfvf ;+Vof !^ @$ #! $) %) ^% (( (( @)^

sd{rf/L ;+Vof &^ !@$ !%# @!! @#& @(& %#( %)# *@@

;b:o ;+Vof !#!#( @*@@@ $$^%) ^@)!! &((%$ **(*$ !#*#^# !$&!)% @!&*^%

C0fL ;+Vof !)%)^ @!$(% ##&&^ $@%$& %%)&@ %!*## *))*& *)!@% !!#^!@

nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ $^#* *&%@ !^@$& @#*)! #^^%$ $!%** (#%)# !)*#$# !^&%#$

art @$* !)@% #@^! &$%* !@*$! !^!&% @%(!! #!@&* $%@#(

ltg{ afFsL shf{ ;fk6 #*)& &#$^ !#%*) !^*!* @@*@( #)&(% ^#$&& ^#^)! (*&!#

r'Qmf k'FhL &)) &)) !))) !@)) !%)* @^$) $!(! %*^& !)*$#

hu]8f tyf sf]ifx? (^ $*) !@)$ !&!) @$%@ @)&% ^)** *))$ !%%(#

s'n ;DklQ $(!@ (*(% !(*$! @*$^& $!(^* %$@&$ !)$!)) !!$($@ !&*!%(

;+rfng d'gfkmf !%* ^!$ !!## !#$^ @)^# !@!& $((& %@#$ #!)^

v'b d'gfkmf !)$ #*# &@$ *%^ !@(( &^^ #!%* #&&* @!%(

ca d cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) sf pknlAwx? lgDglnlvt pkzLif{sx?df k]z ug{ rfxG5' . 

1=  	;+:yfsf] k'FhLut ;+/rgf M
	 ;dLIff aif{df ;:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?= ! ca{ * s/f]8 $@ nfv ^ xhf/ k'u]sf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt 

@)*)÷!)÷@@ ut] a;]sf] !^# cf}F a}7sn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd xfn r'Qmf k'FhL ¿= !)*,$@)^@!(=%# -cIf/]kL  
Ps ca{ cf7 s/f]8 aofnL; nfv 5 xhf/ b'O{ ;o pGgfO; k};f lqkGg dfq_ sf] s'n s/ ;lxt !% k|ltzt -&=% 
k|ltzt gub nfef+z tyf &=% k|ltzt af]gz z]o/_ u/L x'g cfpg] ¿=!^,@^,#),(#@.(# -cIf/]kL ;f]x| s/f]8 5AaL; 

-?= !) nfvdf_-?= !) nfvdf_



5 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

nfv tL; xhf/ gf} ;o aQL; k};f lqofgAa] dfq_ nfef+z ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj u/]sf] 5 . o; ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 
:jLs[t ePdf ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf z]o/ k'FhL ?= ! ca{ !^ s/f]8 %% nfv @! xhf/ ^ ;o *% k'Ug]5 .    

2=  	;+:yfut ;'zf;g M 

	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g (Corporate Governance) nfO{ ;w} pRr :yfgdf /fVg ;+:yf k|lta4 5 . ;+:yfdf cfGtl/s 
lgoGq0f k|0ffnL sfod /fVgsf nflu k|zf;lgs lgoGq0f, ah]6/L lgoGq0f, cgnfOg sDKo'6/s[t clen]v k|0ffnL, 
lgoldt cg'udg, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f nufotsf cEof;x? cljlR5Gg ?kn] lqmoflzn 5g\\ . ;+:yfsf x/]s 
lqmofsnfkx? kf/bzL{ ?kdf ;+rfng u/L ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] lasf; ug{ Pj+ ;f]sf] cg'e"lt u/fpg ;+:yf ;b}j 
lqmoflzn 5 . o;sf ;fy} ;+:yfn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+s nfufot cGo laleGg lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af6 ;do ;dodf 
hf/L ePsf gLlt lgb]{zgnfO{ ;hutfsf ;fy k"0f{?kdf kfngf ub}{ cfPsf] / eljiodf ;d]t ug{ k|lta4 5 .

3=  	sfo{qmd tyf sf/f]jf/ lj:tf/ M 

	 cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) o; ;+:yfsf] nflu ;du|df ;Gtf]ifhgs /x\of] . ;dLIff cjlwdf ;+:yfn] xfl;n u/]sf] 
sfo{;Dkfbgsf] emns tn pNn]v ul/P cg';f/ % .                                        -/sd ¿= xhf/df_

qm=;+= ljj/0f
cfly{s jif{
2078÷79

cfly{s jif{
2079÷80 j[l4 j[l4 k|ltzt

! zfvf ;+Vof (( @)^ !)& !)*Ü

@ sfo{s|d k'u]sf] lhNnf ;+Vof ^$ &$ !) !^Ü

# s'n ;b:o ;+Vof !$&!)% @!&*^% &)&^) $*Ü

$ s'n C0fL ;+Vof *)!@% !!#^!@ ##$*& $@Ü

% s'n shf{ ;fk6 !)*#$@^& !^&%#$## %(!)!^^ %%Ü

^ s'n jrt #!@&*$^ $%@#(%) !#(^!)$ $%Ü

4=  	sd{rf/L tflnd tyf j[lQ ljsf; M
	 @)*) ;fn kf}if d;fGt;Dddf ;+:yfsf] ;]jfdf s'n &&$ hgf sd{rf/Lx? sfo{/t 5g\ . s'g} klg ;+:yfsf] 

;kmntf / c;kmntf To; ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] Ifdtf / ;]jfsf] u'0f:t/df lge{/ /xg] x'Fbf sd{rf/Lx?sf]  
5g\f}6, ;?jf, a9'jf tyf a[lQ lasf;df ;+:yfn] pko'Qm gLlt agfO{ k|efjsf/L 9+un] sfof{Gjog ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] 5 .  
To:t}, sd{rf/Lx?sf] k|f]T;fxg a9fpg tyf ;do ;fk]If dx+uLnfO{ dWogh/ u/L cGo k|lt:kwL{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
t'ngfdf pTkfbsTj a[l4df cfwfl/t eO{ cfsif{s tna, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwfsf] Aoj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . sfo{;Dkfbg 
d"Nof+sgdf /fd|f] c+s xfl;n ug]{, Ifdtfjfg, cg'ejL, ;+:yfk|lt k|ltj4, nugzLn, cg'zfl;t, cGo sd{rf/LnfO{ 
;sf/fTds pTk|]/0ff lbg ;Sg] w}o{jfg sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ pko'Qm lhDd]jf/L lbO{ a[lQ ljsf;sf] cj;/ k|bfg ug]{  
/0fgLlt lnOPsf] 5 . 

	 sd{rf/Lx? ;+:yfsf cd"No ;DklQ x'g\ eGg] dfGotfnfO{ cfTd;fy u/L ;+:yfn] sfo{;Dkfbgdf k|efjsf/L e"ldsf 
lgjf{x ug{ Pj+ sd{rf/Lsf] Ifdtf clea[l4 ug{ cfˆgf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ b]zleq tyf b]z aflx/ ;d]t tflndsf] 
cj;/ lbO{ Ifdtf clea[l4 ug]{ sfo{df hf]8 lbPsf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df ef}lts ?kdf / er'{cn 
sfo{s|dsf] dfWodjf6 ^*! hgf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ tflndf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . ^)& hgf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ ;+:yf 
:jod\n] ;+rfng u/]sf] tflnddf / &$ hgf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ cGo ljleGg ;+:yfx?n] :jb]zd} cfof]hgf ul/Psf 
tflndx?df ;xefuL u/fOPsf] 5 . u|fxs ;b:ox?nfO{ shf{sf] ;fy ;fy} Joj;flos Ifdtf clea[l4sf nflu 
;Lk / bIftfsf] ljsf; ckl/xfo{ x'g] s'/fnfO{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] dgg / sfof{Gjog ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ;fy} ;+:yfn] 
u|fxsx?nfO{ pBdzLntf ;DjGwL tflndx? ;+rfng u/L Joj;flostf k|a4{gdf ;xof]u ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o; 
;+:yfn] cf=j=@)&(÷*) df #)# hgf ;b:ox?nfO{ t/sf/L v]tL tyf afv|f kfng nufotsf n3'pBdzLntf 
;DaGwL tflnd k|bfg u/]sf] 5 . ;fy}, o; ;+:yfn] cf=j=@)&(÷*) df #$! hgf ;b:ox?nfO{ ljQLo ;fIf/tf 
;DaGwL tflnd k|bfg u/]sf] 5 .
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 5= 	u|fxs ;+/If0f, ;fdflhs hjfkmb]lxtf tyf n#'pBdzLntf lasf; / la:tf/ M

	 ;+:yfn] n3'ljQ If]qdf k|ltkfbg ul/Psf laZjAofkL u|fxs ;+/If0fsf l;4fGtx?nfO{ kl/kfngf ub}{ u|fxs k|lt 
sd{rf/Lsf] lhDd]jf/L / k|ltj4tf ;DjGwdf ;+:yfdf cfrf/ ;+lxtfsf] th'{df u/L sfof{Gjogdf NofPsf] 5 . 
;+:yfsf] gLlt, lgod, lgb]{lzsfdf ePsf Joj:yfx? u|fxs ;+/If0fsf] laZjAofkL dfGotf;+u d]n vfg] u/L lasf; 
ul/Psf] 5 . u|fxsx? g} ;+:yfsf] d'n ;DklQ x'g\ eGg] dfGotfnfO{ dgg u/L k|To]s jif{ ub}{ cfO/x]sf] zfvfx?sf] 
;d"x kbflwsf/L / cleefjs uf]i7L nufot u|fxsx?df n3'pBdzLntf ljsf; ug]{ p2]Zon] k|bfg ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 
tflnd sfo{s|d tyf ljQLo ;fIf/tf k"0f{tof ;+rfngdf /x]sf] cj:yf 5 . u|fxsx?df n3'pBdzLntf ljsf;sf] 
nflu u|fxsx?sf] cfjZostf / :yfgLo ahf/nfO{ klxrfg u/L cfufdL lbgdf o:tf lsl;dsf ;Lk ljsf; tflnd 
sfo{qmdnfO{ cem Aofks ?kdf ;+rfng ug]{ of]hgf /x]sf] 5 .

	 To:t}, zfvfx? /x]sf] ljleGg :yfgdf :yfgLo ;/sf/ / :yfgLo :t/sf ;+:yfx?;+u ldn]/ ;fdflhs sfo{s|dx? 
;~rfng ul/Psf] 5 . ;+:yfn] u|fxsx?sf] xslxt / ;du| ljsf;nfO{ Wofgdf /fvL u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if ;+rfngdf 
NofPsf] 5 . u|fxssf] 3/ kl/jf/df s;}sf] d[To' ePdf wfld{s tyf ;fdflhs k/Dk/f cg';f/ ug'{kg]{ sfhlsl/of, ;'Ts]/L 
:ofxf/ nufot cGo b}jL k|sf]kaf6 kLl8t ;b:ox?nfO{ ;+:yfsf] u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifjf6 ;dLIff cjlw;Dd ;xof]u  
:j?k  s'n ?= $! nfv (# xhf/ vr{ ul/Psf] 5 . o; sf]ifdf cf=j=@)&(÷*) sf] clGtd;Dd ?= @$ s/f]8 
%) nfv #* xhf/ df}Hbft /x]sf] 5 .

6= 	 ;"rgf k|ljlw M 
  	 ;+:yfsf] ;]jfnfO{ cem kf/bzL{, l56f]5l/tf] / laZj;gLotfdf a[l4 ub}{ u|fxsx?nfO{ k|ljlwd}qL agfpg ;"rgf 

k|ljlwnfO{ ljz]if dxTjsf ;fy cjnDag u/L ;+:yf ;+rfngsf] z'?jft b]lv g} ;+:yfn] s]Gb|Ls[t ;ˆ6j]o/ k|0ffnL 
(Core Banking System) k|of]u ub}{ cfPsf]df xfn ;+:yfn] l;ghL{ 6]s ;ˆ6j]o/ k|f= ln= åf/f lgld{t MFIN ;ˆ6j]o/  
dfkm{t ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ cem Jojl:yt agfOPsf] 5 . xfnsf] ablnbf] kl/j]z cg's"n ;+:yfsf] dxTjk"0f{ ;"rgf 
tyf hfgsf/Lx?sf] ;'/Iff ;+a]bgzLntfnfO{ Wofgdf /fvL ;+:yfsf] ;e{/ Aoj:yfkgnfO{ Cloud Dedicated VPS df  
:yfgfGt/0f u/L ;]jf ;~rfng eO/x]sf] 5 . ;+:yfn] sf]/ a}+lsËsf] ;fy} ;+:yfsf] ;Dk"0f{ sfd sf/afxLnfO{  
k|ljlwo'Qm agfpgsf] nflu HR Module k|of]udf NofPsf] 5 . To:t}, ;+:yfn] cfˆgf u|fxsx?nfO{ k|ljlwd}qL 
agfpgsf] nflu df]afOn, P;PdP; / 6\ofan]6 a}+lsËs ;]jf ;d]t sfof{Gjogdf NofPsf] 5 .  

7= 	 dh{/ tyf k|flKt ;DaGwdf M 

	 o; ;+:yfn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ……3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkq k|fKt /fli6«o :t/sf] dlxnf ;xofqf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf 
lnld6]8nfO{ k|flKt -PlSjhLzg_ u/L ldlt @)&* cfiff9 #) ut] b]lv PsLs[t sf/f]jf/ ;+rfng u/]sf] lyof] . To;}
u/L ut cf=j= @)&(÷*) df o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ……3Æ au{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt /fli6«o :t/sf] 
;dL6 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld68;Fu dh{/ sfo{ ;DkGg u/L ldlt @)*) cfiff9 #) ut]af6 g]zgn n3'ljQ 
ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] gfdaf6 PsLs[t sf/f]jf/ ;+rfng u/LPsf] 5 .

8= 	 art kl/rfng M 

  	 afl0fHo a}+s, lasf; a}+s / ljQ sDkgLx?n] cfˆgf] s'n shf{ ;fk6sf] qmdzM Go"gtd % k|ltzt lakGg au{df 
shf{ k|jfx ug{' kg]{ Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . a}+s tyf laQLo ;+:yfdf t/ntfdf cfO/xg] ptf/ r9fjsf] cj:yfn] ;dodf 
cfjZostf cg';f/ shf{ sf]ifsf] cefj x'g' / csf]{tkm{ sf]ifsf] nfutdf cTolws a[l4n] ubf{ n3'ljQ ;+:yfx?df 
gsf/fTds c;/ kg{ ;Sg] cj:yf /x]sf]] 5 . ;+:yfn] jrt kl/rfngtkm{ hf]8 lbO{ a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] shf{ 
sf]if k|ltsf] lge{/tfnfO{ sd ub}{ n}hfg' kg]{ cj:yf /x]sf]n] g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zgsf] kl/wLleq /xL ;+:yfdf 
cfa4 ;j} u|fxsx?jf6 jrt ;+sngdf laz]if hf]8 lbO{ >f]tdf cfTdlge{/ x'g] u/L laz]if /0fgLlt clVtof/ u/L 
sfof{Gjog ub}{ cfPsf]] 5 .
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9= 	 /fh:jdf of]ubfg M  
	 cf=j= @)&(÷*) df ;+:yfn] g]kfn ;/sf/nfO{ ;+:yfut cfos/ jfkt ?= !) s/f]8 !$ nfv, sd{rf/Lx?sf] 

kfl/>lds cfos/ jfkt ?= *& nfv, nfef+z lat/0f jfkt ?= % nfv, artsf] s/ jfkt ?= ! s/f]8 @^ nfv 
/ cGo s/ afkt ?= !) nfv !@ xhf/ u/L /fh:jdf s'n ?= !@ s/f]8 $@ nfv !@ xhf/ of]ubfg u/]sf] 5 .

-v_	 /fli^«o tyf cGt/f{li^«o kl/l:yltaf^ sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/df k/]sf] c;/ M

	 cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltn] ;+:yfsf]] sf/f]af/nfO{ vf;} c;/ gu/] tfklg ljZjAofkL ?kdf 
cfPsf] cfly{s dGbLsf] c;xh kl/l:yltaf6 ;+:yfsf] sfd sf/f]af/ c5'tf] /xg ;s]g . To:t}, b]zsf ljleGg 
:yfgx?df ePsf n£f'ljQ ;+:yf lj?4sf e|fds ultljlwx?n] ;+:yfsf] b}lgs sfo{ ;Dkfbgdf gsf/fTds c;/ 
k/]sf] 5 . To;}u/L n£f'ljQ If]qdf b]vfk/]sf] c:j:y k|ltikwf{sf] ;d:of nufot eljiodf cfpg ;Sg] k|fs[lts 
k|sf]k h:tf ;d:of k|lt ;dodf g} ;r]t x'g g;s]df sfo{qmdnfO{ k|ToIf jf ck|ToIf ?kdf k|efj kfg]{ b]lvG5 .  
u|fxs ;b:osf] plrt Ifdtf klxrfg, ;+/If0f tyf ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj axg ug]{, shf{ ;"rgf s]Gb| nufot 
;+:yfx?jLr Pscfk;df ;"rgf cfbfgk|bfg ug]{, :j:y k|lt:kwf{nfO{ a9fjf lbg], ;+:yfut Ifdtf clej[l4 ug]{,  
a9\bf] nfut lgoGq0f ug]{, Go"gtd vr{df ;+:yf ;+rfng ug]{, u|fxssf] dfu cg';f/sf] shf{ sf]ifsf] Joj:yf ug]{, 
;do ;fk]If k|ljlwsf] pkof]u ug]{ h:tf r'gf}tLx? 5g\\ . oL r'gf}tL tyf ;d:of ;dfwfg ug{ ;~rfns ;ldlt 
tyf Aoa:yfkg cxf]/fq nflu k/]sf] 5 . z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?af6 o; jf/]df uxlsnf ;Nnfx / ;'emfjx?sf] 
ck]Iff /fv]sf 5f}+ . 

-u_	 k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt;Dd rfn' jif{sf] pknAwL / eljiodf ug'{ kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/)ffM

	 rfn' cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] bf];|f] q}df; cyf{t kf}if d;fGt;Dd ;+:yfsf] k|ult lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .                                                    

qm=;+= ljj/)f 2079 kf}if d;fGt 2080 kf}if d;fGt
! zfvf ;+Vof !)! !*$
@ sfo{s|d k'usf] lhNnf ;+Vof ^$ &$
# u|fxs ;+Vof ! nfv $( xhf/ & ;o @ nfv @! xhf/ ! ;o
$ C0fL ;+Vof  &* xhf/ & ;o $@  ! nfv & xhf/ # ;o
% art kl/rfng     # ca{ @$s/f]8 ^# nfv       % ca{ @$ s/f]8 & nfv 
^ nufgLdf /xsf] s'n shf{ !! ca{ $@ s/f]8 & nfv !* ca{ ^@ s/f]8 ($ nfv 
& Aofh cfDbfgL *! s/f]8 $* nfv ! ca{ !% s/f]8 $^ nfv 
* cGo cfDbfgL !$ s/f]8 &@ nfv !& s/f]8 @% nfv 
( Jofh vr{ $( s/f]8 !& nfv *) s/f]8 !$ nfv
!) ;+rfng vr{ @) s/f]8 ( nfv #@ s/f]8 &) nfv
!! ;+rfng d'gfkmf @% s/f]8 ^^ nfv !$ s/f]8 *( nfv
!@ v'b d'gfkmf !^ s/f]8 !& nfv !) s/f]8 $@ nfv
!# k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL %%.%& !(.@@
!$ k|lt z]o/ g]6jy{ @%(.!^ @%#.**

	 ;+:yfn] b]xfosf d'Vo ;/f]sf/jfnfx? (Stakeholders) sf] cfjZostf, rfxgf / ck]IffnfO{ ;d]6\g] u/L sfo{ cufl8 
a9fPsf] 5 M

-s_ u|fxsx?sf] rfxgf / cfjZostf cg';f/ plrt d"Nodf u'0f:t/Lo ;]jf k|afx ug{'sf] ;fy} Aoa;flos Ifdtf 
a[l4df hf]8 lbg] .

-v_ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ ;do ;fk]Ifsf] ;]jf pknAwtf ;lxtsf] dgf]an pRr /fVg / Ifdtf clea[l4tkm{ laz]if Wofg 
k'¥ofpg] . 



8 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

-u_ z]o/wgLx?nfO{ plrt k|ltkmn lbg k|oTgzLn /xg] .

-3_ æ;fdflhs bfloTjÆ tkm{ ;r]t /xL ;Dej eP;Dd k"/f ug{ cu|;/ x'g] .

To;}u/L rfn' cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd ;+:yfn] d'Vo ?kdf lgDgfg';f/sf] sfo{ ug]{ nIo 
lnPsf] s'/f z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' .

	 tf]lsPsf zfvfx?af6 o; cfly{s aif{df @ nfv $! xhf/ eGbf a9L ljkGg 3/ kl/jf/nfO{ n3'ljQ ;]jf 
k|bfg ug]{ .

	 nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ ?= @! ca{ eGbf a9L k'¥ofOg] . 
	 u|fxsx?jf6 s'n jrt ?= % ca{ (! s/f]8 eGbf a9L kl/rfng ug]{ .
	 la:tf/ / sfo{s|dsf] u'0f:t/tfnfO{ ;fy;fy} ;Gt'lnt ?kdf cufl8 a9fO{ lbuf]kgf xfl;n ug]{ .
	 hf]lvd tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ r':t, b'?:t / k|efjsf/L jgfpg cfjZos ;+oGq, gLltlgod, 

sfo{ljlwsf] ljsf; u/L sfof{Gjog ug]{{ .
	 :ynut / u}/:ynut ;'kl/j]If0f / cg'udgsf] sfo{nfO{ k|efjsf/L jgfpg] .
	 xfnsf] k|lt:kwL{ jhf/df k|lt:kwf{ ug{ ;do ;fk]If u|fxs ;'xfpFbf] shf{, jrt nufot cGo sfo{s|dsf] 

ljsf; ug]{ . 
	 shf{ k|jfxsf] nflu shf{ sf]ifsf] kof{Kttftkm{ ljz]if rgfvf] eO{ a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?;+u ;xsfo{ ug]{ .
	 u|fxs ;+/If0fsf] cfwf/e"t l;4fGtnfO{ cjnDjg / sfof{Gjog ug]{ tkm{ ljz]if Wofg lbg] .
	 u|fxsx?nfO{ pBdLsf] ?kdf ljsf; ug{ cfjZos ;Lk / n3'pBd ljsf; ;DjGwL tflnd k|bfg u/L 

pTkfbgsf] ahf/ ;'lglZrt ug{ u|fxsx?nfO{  k|fljlws ;xof]u / jhf/;+u ;dGjo ub}{ n3'pBdLsf] ?kdf 
ljsf;sf nflu g]kfn ;/sf/sf] ;DjlGwt lgsfo tyf cGo ;+3 ;+:yfx?;+u ;xsfo{ ug{] .

	 ;+:yfsf] Ifdtf clej[l4 / lbuf]kg xfl;n ug{ /fli6«o / cGt/f{li6«o ;+3 ;+:yfx?;+u ;xsfo{sf] nflu ljz]if  
Wofg lbg] .

	 gljgtd ;"rgf k|ljlwsf] k|of]u tkm{ Wofg s]Gb|Lt ub{} sfo{s|dnfO{ cem k|efjsf/L jgfpg] . 

-#_	 sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw M

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgodgsf/L lgsfox? g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn 
:6s PS;r]Gh, l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë lnld6]8 nufot dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; P;f]l;P;g ckm g]kfn (MFAN), g]kfn 
n3'ljQ a}+s;{ ;+3 tyf cGt/f{li6«o ;+:yf Banking With The Poor Network (BWTP) nufot cGo lgsfox?;+u 
;'dw'/ ;DaGw /xL cfPsf] 5 / eljiodf cGo /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o ;+3 ;+:yfx?;+u ;'dw'/ ;DaGw sfod ug{ 
k|oTglzn /xg] 5 . 

-ª_	 ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/)f M

	 o; cjlwdf ;+:yfn] ;fljs ;dL6 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8;Fu dh{/ u/]sf]df b'j} ;+:Yffsf aLrdf ;+:yf Ps 
cfk;df ufEg]÷ufleg] -dh{/_ ;Dawdf ePsf] ;dembf/L cg';f/ dh{/ kZrft\ ag]sf] g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf 
lnld6]8sf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf b'a} ;+:yfsf] tkm{af6 k|ltlglwTj x'g]u/L ;~rfns dgf]gog ul/Psf]df ;fljs  
g]zgn dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf ;~rfns qmdzM >L efis/ g/l;+x hf]zL / >L /fd s'df/ 
ltdlN;gfnfO{ ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 labfO{ ul/Psf]df ;~rfnssf] x}l;otn] pxfFx?n] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf]] 
pGglt / k|ultdf k'¥ofpg' ePsf] ct'ngLo of]ubfgsf] pRr sb/ ub}{ wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' / ;fljs ;dL6 n3'ljQ 
ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] ;~rfnssf] tkm{af6 dgf]gog eO{ cfpg' ePsf] ;~rfns qmdzM >L lty{/fh 9sfn  
/ >L k|lbt s'df/ /]UdLnfO{ ;x[bo :jfut ub{5' . ;fy} pxf+x?sf] ;kmn sfo{sfnsf] nflu z'esfdg ;d]t JoQm ub{5' .   

-r_	 sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx¿ M

	 xfdLx? lgDgfg';f/sf k|lts"ntfnfO{ Go"gLs/0f ub}{ ;+:yfnfO{ k|efjsf/L 9+un] cufl8 a9fpg k|oTg/t 5f}+ .  
o; sfo{df z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?af6 cfjZos ;Nnfx / ;'emfjx? k|fKt x'g] ck]Iff /fv]sf 5f}+ . 
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-!_ xfn b]zsf ljleGg 7fpFx?df eO/x]sf n£f'ljQ ;+:yf lj?4sf gs/fTds lqmofsnfkx?n] ;+:yfsf] b}lgs sfo{ 
;Dkfbgdf cem gsf/fTds c;/ kg{ ;Sg] .

-@_ a}+s tyf laQLo ;+:yfx?sf] pRr Aofh b/sf sf/0fn] ;+:yfsf] nIodf kg{ ;Sg] gsf/fTds k|efj .

-#_ n3'ljQ If]qdf ;+:yfx?aLr sfod /x]sf] c:j:Yo k|ltikwf{n] ubf{ shf{ b'?kof]u x'g ;Sg] .

-$_ b]zsf] cfly{s, df}lb|s tyf ljQLo gLlt nufot g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] ug]{ lgodg lgb]{zgsf] ck|Toflzt kl/jt{gaf6 
;Defljt hf]lvdx? >[hgf x'g ;Sg] .

-%_ g]kfnsf b'u{d 7fpFx?df zfvf sfof{no vf]Ng tyf k|lalw pkof]u ug{ Go"gtd ;'lawf gx'+bf sfd ug{ sl7gfO{ x'g'sf 
;fy} ;+:yfn] a9L gf]S;fgL Aoxf]g'{ kg]{ .

-^_ pRr d"No j[l4n] ;+rfng vr{ j[l4 eO{ ;+:yfsf] lbuf]kgfdf c;/ ug{ ;Sg] .

-&_ oyf;dodf shf{ c;'nL geO{ pTkGg x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdx? .

-*_ k+'hL jhf/df cfpg ;Sg] ptf/r9fjjf6 x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdx? . 

	 ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/df kg{ ;Sg] c;/sf nflu ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt, ljleGg pk;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg kIf 
rgfvf] /xL ;Defljt xfgL gf]S;fgL sd ug{ k|ltj4 /xg] 5f}+ .

-%_	 n]vfk/LIf)f k|ltj]bg / ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof M

	 ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 lgo'Qm x'g' ePsf] n]vfk/LIfs s'j]/ Pg e§/fO{ P08 sDkgL, rf6{8{ PsfpG6]06;\n] n]vfk/LIf0f 
ug'{ ePsf] 5 . o; k|ltj]bg;fy ;+nUg n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg / n]vf ljj/0fx?n] ;+:yfsf] oyfy{ l:yltsf] lrq0f u/]sf]  
5 . n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} gsf/fTds s'/f pNn]v 5}g . n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg dfly ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
tkm{af6 s'g} l6Kk0fL (Comment) 5}g . n]vfk/LIfsn] /fVg' ePsf] ;'emfjnfO{ sfof{Gjog ug{ Joj:yfkgnfO{  
lgb]{zg lbOPs]f 5 .

-h_	 nfef+z afF*kmfF* ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd M

	 ;+:yfn] s/ ;lxt k|:tfj u/]sf] &=% k|ltzt af]gz nfe+fz tyf &=% k|ltzt gub nfef+z u/L s/ ;lxt hDdf !% 
k|ltzt nfe+fz :jLs[ltsf] nflu g]kfn /fi6« a}+s ;dIf k]z ul/Psf]df g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] ldlt @)*)÷!!÷)( ut]sf] 
kqåf/f &=% k|ltzt af]gz nfef+z tyf s/ ;lxt &=% k|ltzt gub nfef+z u/L hDdf !% k|ltzt nfef+z af8\g kfpg] 
u/L nfef+z :jLs[lt k|bfg ul/Psf] xF'bf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*)÷!)÷@@ ut] a;]sf] !^# cf}+ a}7ssf] lg0f{o 
adf]lhd ;+:yfsf] xfnsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ¿=!,)*,$@,)^,@!(.%# -cIf/]kL Ps ca{ cf7 s/f]8 aofnL; nfv 5 xhf/ b'O 
;o pGgfO; k};f lqkGg dfq_ sf] &=% k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] z]o/ nfef+z ?=*,!#,!%,$^^.$^ -cIf/]kL cf7 s/f]8 t]x| 
nfv kGw| xhf/ rf/ ;o 5};¶L k};f 5\ofln; dfq_ tyf &=% k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] gub nfef+z ?=*,!#,!%,$^^.$^ 
-cIf/]kL cf7 s/f]8 t]x| nfv kGw| xhf/ rf/ ;o 5};¶L k};f 5\ofln; dfq_ u/L s/ ;lxt hDdf ?=!^,@^,#),(#@.(# 
-cIf/]kL ;f]x| s/f]8 5AaL; nfv tL; xhf/ gf} ;o aQL; k};f lqofgAa] dfq_ nfef+z ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj  
ul/Psf] 5 .

-em_	ut cf=j= @)&(÷*) df sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/sf] k|ult ljj/0f M

	 ut cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df eP u/]sf] sf/f]af/nfO{ gfkmf gf]S;fg / ;DklQ bfloTjsf] ljZn]if0fsf] cfwf/df 
lgDgfg';f/ k]z ug{ rfxG5' .

1=	 gfkmf gf]S;fgsf] l:yltM

	 cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df ;+:yfsf]] s'n ;+rfng vr{ ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf *=%# k|ltztn] yk a[l4 eO{ 
?=$# s/f]8 # nfv k'u]sf] 5 . ut aif{ o:tf] vr{ ?=#( s/f]8 ^% nfv /x]sf] lyof] . To:t}, o; cf=j=df 
Aofh vr{ ut aif{sf] t'ngfdf #)=&( k|ltztn] a[l4 eO{ ?= ! ca{ ^% nfv k'u]sf] 5, h'g ut jif{df ?=&^ 
s/f]8 (% nfv dfq /x]sf] lyof] . cfDbfgLtkm{ cf=j=@)&(÷*) df Aofh cfDbfgL ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf @=$^ 
k|ltztn] yk a[l4 eO{ ?=! cj{ ^^ s/f]8 ^% nfv /x]sf] 5, h'g ut jif{ ?= ! ca{ ^@ s/f]8 ^$ nfv dfq 
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/x]sf] lyof] . cGo cfDbfgLtkm{ ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf !(=!$ k|ltztn] sdL eO{ ?= * s/f]8 (& nfv /x]sf] 
5, h'g ut jif{ ?= !! s/f]8 ( nfv /x]sf] lyof] . To:t}, s'n cfDbfgL ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf !=)( k|ltztn] 
yk a[l4 eO{ ?= ! cj{ &% s/f]8 ^@ nfv /x]sf] 5, h'g ut jif{ ?=! cj{ &# s/f]8 &# nfv /x]sf] lyof] . 
To:t}, v'b d'gfkmftkm{ ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf $@=+*$ k|ltztn] sdL eO{ ?=@! s/f]8 %( nfv k'u]sf] 5, h'g 
ut jif{df ?= #& s/f]8 &* nfv /x]sf] lyof] .   

2=	 ;DklQ bfloTjsf] cj:yf M

	 cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf *$=*! k|ltztn] a[l4 eO{ ?=! ca{ * 
s/f]8 $@ nfv ^ xhf/ /x]sf] 5 . cf=j=@)&(÷*) sf] d'gfkmfjf6 k|:tfljt &=% k|ltzt af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f 
kZrft\ r'Qmf k+'hL ?= ! ca{ !^ s/f]8 %% nfv @! xhf/ k'Ug]5 . hu]8f tyf sf]if cGtu{t s'n ?= ! cj{ 
%% s/f]8 (@ nfv *& xhf/ x'g k'u]sf] 5 . ;f]xL cjlwsf] cGt;Dd jrttkm{ ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf $$=^# 
k|ltzt cyf{t ?= ! ca{ #( s/f]8 ^! nfvn] a[l4 eO{ s'n jrt ?=$ ca{ %@ s/f]8 #( nfv /x]sf] 5, h'g 
ut jif{df ?= # ca{ !@ s/f]8 &* nfv dfq /x]sf] lyof] . o; cjlwdf a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?jf6 lnPsf] 
shf{ ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf ?= # cj{ %! s/f]8 !# nfvn] a[l4 eO{ s'n shf{ ;fk6 ?= ( cj{ *& s/f]8 !$ 
nfv /x]sf] 5 . To:t} ;DklQtkm{ ;+:yfsf] nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ ?= % ca{ (! s/f]8 (@ nfvn] yk a[l4 eO{ 
s'n ?= !^ cj{ &% s/f]9 #$ nfv /x]sf] 5 . ;du|df o; cjlwdf ;DklQ / bfloTjtkm{ ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf 
%% k|ltztn] a[l4 eO{ s'n ?= !& cj{ *! s/f]8 %( nfv /x]sf] 5 . 

-`_  cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL M

	 o; ;+:yfdf cfGtl/s lgoGq0fsf] nflu k|zf;lgs lgoGq0f, ah]6/L lgoGq0f, cgnfOg sDKo'6/s[t clen]v  
k|0ffnL, lgoldt cg'udg, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f h:tf k|of;x? lqmofzLn 5g\\ . o; sDkgLnfO{ ;';+rfng ug{ 
geO{ gx'g] cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL, sd{rf/L ;]jf ljlgodfjnL, shf{ ckn]vg ljlgodfjnL, sfo{ ;+rfng  
lgb]{lzsf, shf{ gLlt, jrt gLlt, u|fxs klxrfg sfo{ljlw, ;"rgf k|ljlw gLlt nuftosf ljlgodfjnL, sfo{ljlw, 
gLlt tyf lgb]{lzsfx? tof/ u/L ;f]xL adf]lhd lgoldt ?kdf sfo{ eO{/x]s]f 5 .

	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg / a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&# sf] bkmf !$ tyf !% df ePsf] Joa:yf 
cg';f/ ;~rfns ;ldltn] cfˆgf] hjfkmb]xLdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joa:yfkg ;ldlt, sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf 
;ldlt, ;Dklt z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt u7g u/L sfd, st{Ao / clwsf/ tf]lsPsf] 5 .

-1_ 	 n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltM

	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L k|lbt s'df/ /]UdLsf] ;+of]hsTjdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g u/]sf]  
5 . o; ;ldltdf ;~rfns >L g/]Gb| k|;fb 5Ts'nL ;b:o / cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f laefusf laefuLo 
k|d'v >L 3gZofd yfkf ;b:o ;lra /x]sf 5g\ . of] ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] cfly{s cj:yfsf] ;dLIff, cfGtl/s 
lgoGq0f, n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL sfo{qmd / n]vfk/LIf0fsf] kl/0ffd ;DaGwdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L Aoa:yfkgnfO{ 
cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] u/]sf] 5 . k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;+:yfsf] ;du| ljQLo cj:yf, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, 
n]vfk/LIf0f of]hgf / cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f tyf afXo n]vfk/LIfsn] k]z u/]sf] n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf 
cf}+NofOPsf a'+bf / s}lkmotx? pk/ ;dLIff u/L ;'wf/fTds sbd rfNg Aoa:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg],  
g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ePsf lg/LIf0f tyf ;'kl/j]If0f k|ltj]bgdf cf}+NofOPsf a'+bf / s}lkmotx?sf] sfof{Gjog 
eP÷gePsf] ;DaGwdf ;dLIff ug]{ tyf tL laifox?sf] clen]v u/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg], 
;+:yfsf]] jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fnfO{ ;xL / oyfy{k/s agfpg Aoa:yfkgnfO{ ;xof]u ug]{, ;+:yfsf] sfdsf/afxLdf  
lgoldttf, ldtAolotf, cf}lrTo, k|efjsfl/tf h:tf s'/fx? cjnDag eP gePsf] jf/] ;dLIff u/L ;~rfns 
;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;'emfj lbg], ;+:yfsf] q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0fsf] ;dLIff u/L ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf 
k|ltj]bg k]z ug]{ cflb o; ;ldltsf] k|d'v sfd st{Ao /x]sf] 5 .
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-2_ 	hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt M

	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L lIflth v8\sfsf] ;+of]hsTjdf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt 
u7g u/]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltdf ;~rfns >L k|lbt s'df/ /]UdL ;b:o, ;+rfng laefusf laefuLo k|d'v  
>L sflz/fd e§/fO{ ;b:o / shf{ laefusf laefuLo k|d'v >L Zofd axfb'/ u'?Ë ;b:o ;lra /x]sf 5g\ .  
n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;+of]hs hf]lvd Aoa:yfkg ;ldltsf] kb]g ;b:o /xg] Aoa:yf 5 . ;ldltsf] a}7s 
tLg dlxgfdf sDtLdf Ps k6s a:g'kg]{ Aoa:yf /x]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltsf] sfd, st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn  
/fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd tf]lsPsf] 5 .

-3_ 	sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt M

	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L g/]Gb| k|;fb 5Ts'nLsf] ;+of]hsTjdf sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf 
;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltsf ;b:ox?df ;+:yfsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t / ljQ laefusf laefuLo 
k|d'v /x]sf 5g\ eg] hgzlQm Joa:yfkg laefusf laefuLo k|d'v ;b:o ;lra /x]sf 5g\ . o; ;ldltsf] 
sfd, st{Ao / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zgsf] clwgdf /xL tf]lsPsf] 5 

-4_ 	;DklQ z'$Ls/)f cg'udg ;ldlt M

	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L lty{ /fh 9sfnsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg 
;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltsf] kb]g ;b:odf ;+:yfsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t / ;~rfng laefusf 
laefuLo k|d'v ;b:o ;lra /x]sf 5g\ . o; ;ldltsf] sfd, st{Ao / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zgsf] 
cwLgdf /xL tf]lsPsf] 5 .

-^_ 	s[t!tf !fkg M

	 o; cj;/df ;+:yfsf] :yfkgf / pGgltsf] nflu ax'd"No of]ubfg k'¥ofpg' x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, sDkgL  
/lhi6«f/sf] sfo{fno, g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë lnld6]8 
nufot cGo ljleGg lgsfosf kbflwsf/Lx?, ;+:yfsf] k|lti7f pRr /fVg ;xof]u ug'{x'g] kqsf/x?, ;+:yfnfO{ 
shf{ tyf a}+lsË ;'ljwf pknAw u/fpg] ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx? Pjd\ cGo z'e]R5'sx? k|lt ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ub}{ cfpFbf lbgdf oxf+x?af6 cem a9L ;xof]usf] ck]Iff u/]sf] 5' . 

	 ;+:yfn] cfhsf lbg;Dd xfl;n u/]sf] pknlAw pNn]lvt ;+:yfx?sf] ;xof]u / ;b\efjsf] ;fy} ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkg 
/ ;j} OdfGbf/ sd{rf/Lx?sf] cxf]/fqsf] kl/>daf6 ;Dej ePsf]n] o; cj;/df ;+:yfsf ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ 
xflb{s wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .

	 cGTodf, ljutdf em} ;+:yfsf] pGglt / k|ultsf nflu oxFfx? ;a}af6 cfufdL lbgdf klg ;Nnfx, ;'emfj / xf};nf 
k|fKt x'g] ck]Iff /fv]s]f 5' . 

   ldltM 2080÷12÷16
             	        							      ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf^

                                     					            /ljg l;hfktL
                                        					        cWoIf
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sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)(-$_ ;+u ;DjlGwt ;~rfns ;ldltsf] %'§} k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo yk ljj/)fx? M

-1_  	z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] clÍt d"No, To:tf]  z]o/ hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj}  
;f] afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl% ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /
sd tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)f M

	 ;dLIff calwdf ;+:yfsf] s'g} z]o/wgLsf] gfddf /x]sf] z]o/ hkmt ePsf] %}g .

-2_	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L M

	 o; ;+:yfsf] kf+r k|ltzt jf ;f] eGbf a9L z]o/ u|x0f ug]{ cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLsf ?kdf ;+:yfut z]o/wgLx? 
g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 d]uf a}+s lnld6]8 / s'df/L a}+s lnld6]8 /xg' ePsf] 5 . cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?af6 ;+:yfsf] 
;~rfns, Aoa:yfkg / sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ xf};nf k|fKt x'b} cfPsf] 5 . 

-3_	 ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/ M
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'g} klg ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf] .

-4_	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/ :jfldTjsf] ljj/)f / sDkgLsf] z]o/ 
sf/f]af/df lghx? ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af^ sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L M  

	 ut cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) sf] jiff{Gtdf o; ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] b]xfo adf]lhdsf] z]o/ wf/0f 
u/]sf 5g\ .

	 s=	;~rfns ;ldlt kbflwsf/L

qm=;+= gfd, kb u|x)f u/]sf] s'n z]o/ lsQf

! >L /ljg l;hfktL] -g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 d]uf a}+s ln=_, cWoIf !$,!$,%#!=!&

@ >L s]zjk|;fb cfrfo{, ;~rfns #),*^#=@^

# >L lIflth v8\sf -s'df/L a}+s ln=_, ;~rfns !),@*,&^@=**

$ >L lty{ /fh 9sfn, ;~rfns ^^,)#)=)(

% >L k|lbt s'df/ /]UdL, ;~rfns $&,&&^=&&

6 >L g/]Gb| k|;fb 5Ts'nL, ;~rfns @(%

	 v=	Joj:yfkg kbflwsf/L

qm=;+= gfd, kb u|x)f u/]sf] s'n z]o/

! /fd axfb'/ ofbj k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t !@,!*&

@ b]j]Gb| axfb'/ a:g]t Gffoj k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t @^,$!@

# laho s'df/ l3ld/] al/i7 k|jGws g/x]sf]

$ ;l/tf >]i7 al/i7 k|jGws !,#%*

% 3gZofd yfkf al/i7 k|jGws @!,!@(

^ sfzL/fd e§/fO{ k|jGws !,)&#

& ef]h/fh km'Pn Gffoj k|jGws !#,@)^

* Zofd axfb'/ u'?ª Gffoj k|jGws !(,*)$

 ( /fdrGb| ?kfv]tL ;xfos k|jGws g/x]sf]

!) sdn s'df/ sfkm\n] ;xfos k|jGws g/x]sf]

!! tf/f k|;fb 9'+ufgf al/i7 clws[t g/x]sf]

!@ ;Gtf]if kf08]o slgi7 clws[t g/x]sf]
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-5_	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;+u ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] AolQmut 
:jfy{sf] af/]df pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Aoxf]/f M	

	 ljut cfly{s jif{df o; ;+:yf;+u ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df o; sDkgLsf s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] 
gft]bf/sf] s'g} JolQmut :jfy{ /x]sf] 5}g .       

-6_	 sDkgLn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfˆgf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/)f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof / cl°t 
d"No tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/]afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd M 	

	 ;dLIff jif{df sDkgLn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm} vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .

-7_	 ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/)f M      

     cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ b]xfo adf]lhd ?=$#,)#,!@,^!(.)) /x]sf] 5 .    

	 sd{rf/L vr{			    ?= @(,^),$!,()).))

	 sfof{no ;+rfng vr{ 		   ?=  !#,$@,&),&!(.))

-8_	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh 
;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul&t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpFg af+sL eP ;f] s'/f M  

	 o; ;+:yfsf ;~rfns, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t, cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL / lghsf glhssf gft]bf/x? jf lgh ;+nUg 
/x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] o; sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg af+sL /x]sf] 5}g . cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLsf] 
?kdf /x]sf ;+:yfut z]o/wgLx? d'ntM g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 d]uf a}+s lnld6]8 / s'df/L a}+s lnld6]8 a}+lsË  ;+:yf 
ePsf]n] tL ;+:yf;+u lgoldt a}+lsË, shf{ ;fk6 sf/f]af/sf] ;Gbe{df n]gfb]gf af+sL /x]sf] /sd af/] o;};fy ;+nUg 
n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg / n]vf ljj/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

-9_	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M

    ;~rfns ;ldltsf kbflwsf/LnfO{ cfly{s aif{ @)&(÷*) df a}7s eQf jfkt ?=!%,$^,))). / kqklqsf tyf 
;+rf/ vr{ jfkt ? @,@@,))).)) /sd e'QmfgL ePsf] 5 . 

   	 o; ;+:yfsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tdf >L /fd axfb'/ ofbj sfo{/t x'g'x'G5 . jxfnfO{ cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df 
tnj, eQf tyf ;Dk"0f{ ;]jf ;'ljwf jfkt s'n ?= &@,%&,#@$.)! dfq e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 .

-10_	z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M

	 ;+:yfn] xfn;Dd 3f]if0ff u/]sf] nfef+zsf] ?= !,^^,(),*&@.)) /sd e'QmfgL ug{ afFsL /x]sf] 5 .

-11_	 bkmf 141 adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/)f M

	 ;+:yfnfO{ cfjZos kg]{ ;DklQx?sf] vl/b ljj/0f ;+nUg jf;nftsf] cg';"rL !) adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .

-12_	bkmf 175 adf]lhd ;Da$ sDkgLaLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/)f M

	 cfˆgf] sf/f]jf/ tyf Aoa;fosf l;nl;nfdf ul/Psf sf/f]jf/ afx]s sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% df pNn]v 
eP adf]lhd cGo s'g} sf/f]jf/ ePsf] 5}g .  

-13_	 n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo'lQm M
	 o; ;+:yfsf]] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfly{s aif{ @)&(÷*) sf] afXo n]vfk/LIf0f / s/ n]vfk/LIf0f ;d]tsf] nflu 

sDkgL P]g, @)^# adf]lhd s'a]/ Pg e§/fO{ P08 sDkgL rf6{8{ PsfpG6]G6;nfO{ s/ ;lxtsf] kfl/>lds ?= $ 
nfv lbg'sf] ;fy} n]vfk/LIf0fsf] s|ddf zfvf / s]Gb|Lo sfof{no hFfbf cfpFbf nfUg] oftfoft, vfg] / a:g] vr{ 
lansf] cfwf/df e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 .

-14_ sDkgL P]g, 2063 tyf k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo s'/f M
	 k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo s'/f gePsf] .
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National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Banepa-10, Kavrepalanchowk

Statement of Financial Position
As on Ashad 31, 2080

				    In NPR

Particulars Notes 31 Ashad 2080  Restated  Restated 

32 Ashad 2079 01 Shrawan 2078
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1  613,494,089  508,002,501  947,207,757 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra 
Bank 4.2  86,187,309  58,062,231  46,128,058 

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3  -    -    -   
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4  -    -    -   
Other Trading assets 4.5  -    -    -   
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6  -    -    -   
Loans and Advances to Customers  4.7  16,753,432,547  10,834,266,505  9,350,262,107 
Investment Securities 4.8  2,509,914  2,313,276  3,129,231 
Current Tax Assets 4.9  14,983,719  26,730,936  -   
Investment property 4.10  -    -    -   
Property and Equipment 4.11  104,558,231  39,942,019  38,676,129 
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.12  191,924,804  1,254,023  2,032,997 
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13  30,530,553  5,947,814  6,201,330 
Other Assets 4.14  18,250,802  17,692,333  16,323,145 
Total Assets  17,815,871,967  11,494,211,638  10,409,960,754 
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15  -    -    -   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16  -    -    -   
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.17  -    -    -   
Deposits from Customers 4.18  4,523,949,753  3,127,845,926  2,591,135,324 
Borrowings 4.19  9,871,371,063  6,360,090,596  6,347,658,525 
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9  -    -    5,346,105 
Provisions 4.20  -    -    -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13  -    -    -   
Other Liabilities 4.21  777,058,432  619,188,054  437,968,600 
Debt Securities Issued 4.22  -    -    -   
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23  -    -    -   
Total liabilities  15,172,379,247  10,107,124,575  9,382,108,554 
Equity
Share Capital 4.24  1,084,206,220  586,674,973  419,053,553 
Retained Earning  303,948,154  343,302,975  218,958,537 
Reserves 4.25  1,255,338,346  457,109,115  389,840,110 
Total equity attributable to equity holders  2,643,492,720  1,387,087,063  1,027,852,200 
Non-controlling interests  -    -    -   
Total equity  2,643,492,720  1,387,087,063  1,027,852,200 
Total liabilities and equity  17,815,871,967  11,494,211,638  10,409,960,754 
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.26
Net assets value per share  243.82  236.43  245.28 

 				    As per our report of even date 

Rabin Sijapati
Chairperson

Keshav Prasad Acharya
Director

Kshitij Khadka
Director

   Tirtha Raj Dhakal 
Director

Pradit Kumar Regmi
Director

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

Ram Bahadur Yadav
Chief Executive Officer

  Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Head of Finance

  CA. Prahlad Gautam
 Partner

Kuber N. Bhattarai & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 5 Feb 2024
Place: Kathmandu 
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National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Banepa-10, Kavrepalanchowk

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the period 01 Shrawan, 2079 to 31 Ashad, 2080

In NPR

Particulars Notes 31 Ashad 2080
 Restated 

32 Ashad 2079

Interest Income 4.27  1,666,496,203  1,626,406,358 

Interest Expenses 4.28  1,006,517,771  769,547,759 

Net Interest Income  659,978,432  856,858,600 
Fee and Commission Income 4.29  89,667,773  110,898,354 

Fee and Commission Expense 4.30  -    -   

Net fee and Commission income  89,667,773  110,898,354 
Net interest fee and commission income  749,646,204  967,756,954 
Net Trading Income 4.31  -    -   

Other Operating Income 4.32  -    -   

Total operating income  749,646,204  967,756,954 

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33  8,750,434  47,868,647 

Net Operating income  740,895,770  919,888,307 
Operating expense

Personnel Expense 4.34  (296,041,900)  (267,678,359)

Other Operating Expenses 4.35  (124,913,278)  (118,585,746)

Depreciation and Amortization 4.36  (9,357,441)  (10,224,347)

Operating Profit  310,583,151  523,399,855 
Non operating income 4.37  -    -   

Non operating expense 4.38  -    -   

Profit before income tax  310,583,151  523,399,855 
Provision for Employee Bonus

Income tax expense 4.39  94,651,962  145,620,941 

     Current Tax  96,432,464  146,506,273 

     Previous Year Tax Arrears  -    -   

     Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense  (1,780,502)  (885,332)

Profit for the Year  215,931,189  377,778,914 
Earnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share 19.92 64.39

Diluted earnings per Share 19.92 64.39

			    As per our report of even date 
			 
			 

Rabin Sijapati
Chairperson

Keshav Prasad Acharya
Director

Kshitij Khadka
Director

   Tirtha Raj Dhakal 
Director

Pradit Kumar Regmi
Director

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

Ram Bahadur Yadav
Chief Executive Officer

  Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Head of Finance

  CA. Prahlad Gautam
 Partner

Kuber N. Bhattarai & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 5 Feb 2024
Place: Kathmandu 
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      National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Banepa-10, Kavrepalanchowk

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period 01 Shrawan, 2079 to 31 Ashad, 2080

			   In NPR

Particulars Notes 31 Ashad 2080 Restated
32 Ashad 2079

Profit For The Year  215,931,189  377,778,914 
Other Comprehensive Income, Net Of 
Income Tax
A) Items That Will Not Be Reclassified 
To Profit Or Loss  (652,117)  2,657,313 

Gains/(Losses) From Investments In Equi-
ty Instruments Measured At Fair Value  (381,681)  (815,955)

Income Tax Relating To Above Items  114,504  244,787 
Gains/(Losses) On Revalation
Acturial Gains/(Losses) On Defined Ben-
efit Plans  (549,915)  4,612,116 

Income Tax Relating To Above Items  164,975  (1,383,635)
Net Other Comprehensive Income That 
Will Not Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss
B) Items That Are Or May Be Reclassified 
To Profit Or Loss  -    -   

Gains/(Losses) On Cash Flow Hedge  -    -   
Exchange Gains/(Losses) (Arising From 
Translating Financial Assets Of Foreign  -    -   

Operation)  -    -   
Income Tax Relating To Above Items  -    -   
Reclassify To Profit Or Loss  -    -   
Net Other Comprehensive Income That 
Are Or May Be Reclassified To Profit 
Or Loss

 (652,117)  2,657,313 

Other Comprehensive Income For The 
Year, Net Of Income Tax  (652,117)  2,657,313 

Total Comprehensive Income For The 
Year  215,279,072  380,436,227

 			    As per our report of even date 

Rabin Sijapati
Chairperson

Keshav Prasad Acharya
Director

Kshitij Khadka
Director

   Tirtha Raj Dhakal 
Director

Pradit Kumar Regmi
Director

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

Ram Bahadur Yadav
Chief Executive Officer

  Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Head of Finance

  CA. Prahlad Gautam
 Partner

Kuber N. Bhattarai & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 5 Feb 2024
Place: Kathmandu 
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National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Banepa-10, Kavrepalanchowk

Statement of cash flow
For the period 01 Shrawan, 2079 to 31 Ashad, 2080

In NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080  Restated 
32 Ashad 2079

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest Received  1,666,496,203  1,580,106,747 
Fee and other income received  89,667,773  110,898,354 
Dividend Received  -    -   
Receipts from other operating activities  -    -   
Interest paid  (1,006,517,771)  (676,947,575)
Commission and fee paid  -    -   
Cash payments to employee  (262,082,576)  (205,394,902)
Other expense paid  (124,913,278)  (171,782,413)
Operating cash flows before change in operating assets and 
liabilities  362,650,350  636,880,212 

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets  (104,595,850)  
(1,280,510,970)

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -   
Placement with bank and financial institutions  -    206,931,685 
Other Trading assets  -    -   
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions  -    -   
Loan and advances to customer  (153,046,101) (1,485,366,401)
Other Assets  48,450,252  (2,076,254)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities  (444,753,648)  629,768,730 
Due to bank and financial institutions  -    -   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -   
Deposits from customers  110,875,655  536,710,602 
Borrowings  (406,025,903)
Other Liabilities  (149,603,400)  93,058,128 
Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid  (186,699,147)  (13,862,029)
Income taxes paid  (103,944,307)  (178,583,314)
Net Cash flow from operating activities  (290,643,455)  (192,445,343)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities  -    -   
Receipts from sale of investment securities  -    -   
Purchase of plant and equipment  (6,712,720)  (6,941,377)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment  -    -   
Purchase of intangible assets  -   
Receipt from sale of intangible assets  -    -   
Purchase of investment properties  -    -   
Receipt from the sale of investment properties  -    -   
Inflow from acquisition/merger  -    -   
Dividend received  -    -   
Net cash used in investing activities  (6,712,720)  (6,941,377)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt from issue of debt securities  -    -   
Repayment of debt securities  -    -   
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities  -    -   
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Repayment of subordinated liabilities  -    -   
Receipt from issue of shares  -    -   
Dividend paid  -    (20,952,678)
Interest paid  -    -   
Other receipt/payment  -    -   
Net cash from financing activities  -    (20,952,678)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (297,356,175)  (220,339,398)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents  566,064,732  786,404,130 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held  -    -   
Transfer from Acquisition  430,972,840  -   
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents  699,681,397  566,064,732 

		
 As per our report of even date 

Rabin Sijapati
Chairperson

Keshav Prasad Acharya
Director

Kshitij Khadka
Director

   Tirtha Raj Dhakal 
Director

Pradit Kumar Regmi
Director

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

Ram Bahadur Yadav
Chief Executive Officer

  Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Head of Finance

  CA. Prahlad Gautam
 Partner

Kuber N. Bhattarai & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 5 Feb 2024
Place: Kathmandu 
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National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Banepa-10, Kavrepalanchowk

 Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss 
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 

 (As per NRB Regulation) 
		

 Particulars 31 Ashad 2080
Restated

32 Ashad 2079
 Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss  215,931,189  377,778,914 
 Appropriations: 
 a. General reserve  (43,186,238)  (75,555,783)
 b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund 
 c. Capital redemption reserve 
 d. Corporate social responsibility fund  (2,159,312)  (3,777,789)
 e. Employees' Training fund  -    -   
 f. Client's Protection Fund  (2,159,312)  (3,777,789)
 g. Other-Employee Welfare Fund  -    -   

 Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment  168,426,327  294,667,553 
 Regulatory adjustment : 
 a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)  (33,087,713)  (28,853,733)
 b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) 
 c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) 
 d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) 
 e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)  (2,059,981)  253,516 
 f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) 
 g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) 
 h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)  (1,272,408)
 i. Loan Loss Reserve Written Back on Restructure Loan (+/-)  (32,857,220)
 j. Profit brought forward from Previous Years  297,269,909  172,925,472 
 k. Retained Earning Transferred from Acquisition  (4,469,515)  -   
 l. Previous year's declared dividend distributed this year (Share + Cash)  (88,001,246)  (141,722,899)
 Distributable profit or (loss)  303,948,154  297,269,909 

	  -   	  -   
Place:Kathmandu

Rabin Sijapati
Chairperson

Keshav Prasad Acharya
Director

Kshitij Khadka
Director

   Tirtha Raj Dhakal 
Director

Pradit Kumar Regmi
Director

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

Ram Bahadur Yadav
Chief Executive Officer

  Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Head of Finance

  CA. Prahlad Gautam
 Partner

Kuber N. Bhattarai & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 5 Feb 2024
Place: Kathmandu 
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National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Ashad, 2080

1.	 Reporting Entity 
	 National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited ('the Microfinance'/'entity') is domiciled and 

incorporated in Nepal under Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2017 from Nepal Rastra 
Bank operating as a D Class licensed financial institution. The Microfinance is a limited 
liability company having its shares listed on Nepal Stock Exchange with trading code 
“NMFBS” after issuing its shares to the general public. The microfinance has been 
promoted in lead of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited, Kumari Bank Limited, Prime 
Commercial Bank Limited, Garima Bikas Bank Limited, Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited, 
Gurkhas Finance Limited, Siddhartha Bank Limited, Himalayan Bank Limited, Nabil Bank 
Limited, Best Finance Limited, and several reputed persons. The registered address of 
the microfinance is located at Banepa-10, Kavrepalanchowk, Nepal.

2.	 Basis of preparation
	 The financial statements of the microfinance have been prepared in accordance with the 

Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Accounting Standards Board 
and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the 
format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive 4 of NRB Directives, 2079.  

	 NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 

2.1.	 Statement of Compliance
	 The Financial Statements of the entity which comprises components presented above 

have been prepared in compliance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and Nepal 
Accounting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063. 

	 The disclosure made in the financial information have been based on the formats 
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank. The Financial Statement don’t include all of the 
information required for a complete set of NFRS financial statements. However, selected 
explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to 
an understanding of the changes in the microfinance's financial position and performance 
since the last published annual financial statements.

2.2.	 Reporting Period 
	 The Microfinance follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar: 

Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar
Opening NFRS Statement of Financial Position 01 Shrawan 2078
Comparative Statement of Financial Position 32 Ashad 2079
Comparative Reporting Period 01 Shrawan 2078 to 32 Ashad 2079
First NFRS Statement of Financial Position 31 Ashad 2080
First NFRS Reporting Period 01 Shrawan 2079 to 31 Ashad 2080

	 The accompanied financial statements have been approved by the 163rd meeting by 
Board of Directors on its meeting held on 22.10.2080 and have been recommended for 
adoption by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.
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2.3.	 Functional and Presentation Currency
	 The Financial Statements of the Microfinance are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which 

is the   currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates. All 
financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except, 
where indicated otherwise.

2.4.	 New Standards issued but not yet effective 
	 Management has issued its assumptions and understandings for the preparation of 

financial statements under compliance with NFRS, however, certain interpretations might 
vary regarding the recognition, measurement and other related provisions where the 
standards are not specific and not clear or where the cost to benefits analysis is not in 
favour of the microfinance.

2.5.	 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments
	 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with NFRS requires management 

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in applying the accounting policies 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses which are 
explained herein. The management believes that the estimates used in the preparation 
of the financial statement are prudent and reasonable. Due to the inherent uncertainty in 
making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon amounts 
which differ from those estimates. Estimates, judgements and assumptions are periodically 
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations 
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. The financial statements have 
been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and judgements 
as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed 
specifically.

2.6.	 Changes in Accounting policies
	 The Microfinance has applied several amendments to standards for the first time during 

the year ended 31 Ashad 2080. The Microfinance has prepared the opening statement 
of financial position as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) as at 1 Shrawan 
2078 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is 
required by NFRS, not recognising the items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted 
by NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required by NFRS and 
applying NFRS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.

3.	 Significant Accounting Policies
	 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements 

are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.

3.1.	 Basis of Measurement
	 The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for following 

material items in the statement of financial position: 
	 Financial assets other than measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. 
	 Non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at 

fair value.
	 Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value, if any.
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	 Inventories are measured at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.
	 Net defined benefit liabilities are measured at Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation 

less the Total Plan Assets.
	 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the 

accounting policies and judgements as required by the standards are consistently used 
and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.

3.2.	 Basis of Consolidation
	 The microfinance does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of financial 

statements. 

3.3.	 Basis of Consolidation
	 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as per the 

requirements of Nepal Financial Reporting Standard - NFRS 3 (Business Combinations), 
interpretation and explanatory notes issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) 
and Explanatory note on Accounting for Business Combination issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) dated 31 July 2022.

	 The microfinance has acquired Summit Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited on 30 Ashad 
2080. Goodwill and fair value have been measured in accordance with the measurement 
principles of NFRS 3 Business Combinations together with explanatory note as mentioned 
above.

3.4.	 Cash and Cash Equivalent
	 Cash and cash equivalent comprise the total amount of cash-in -hand, balances with 

other bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid 
financial assets with original maturities period of three months or less from the acquisition 
date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by 
the bank in the management of its short-term commitments.

	 Cash and Cash equivalents are measured at amortized cost in the statement of financial position. 

3.5.	 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
	 The bank classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

a.	 financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss;
b.	 financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), and
c.	 financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as either
a.	 measured at fair value through profit or loss, or
b.	 measured at amortized cost.

3.5.1.	 Recognition
	 The microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement 

of financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of an instrument. The microfinance initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits; 
and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated 
which is the date that the microfinance becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, 
NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade 
date at which the microfinance commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular 
purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date.
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3.5.2.	 Measurement
	 Initial Measurement
	 At initial recognition, the bank measures a financial assets or financial liability at its fair 

value plus or minus, in the case of financial asset or financial liability not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction cost that are incremental and directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liability, such as commission and 
fees. The transaction cost of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

3.5.3.	 Financial Assets
	 Financial Assets are classified mainly under amortized cost, fair value through profit or 

loss and fair value through OCI. Financial Liabilities are classified at amortized cost or fair 
value through profit or loss.
a.	 Measured at Amortized Cost
		 Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold 

financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR 
and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

b.	 Measured at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI)
		 Assets are categorized under this category if the business model is to obtain the 

contractual cash flow from the assets but the contractual cash flow isn’t solely 
repayment of principal and interest. Equity Instrument which are not held for trading 
and initially recognized as held for trading for which the Microfinance makes an 
irrevocable election to carry the changes in fair value of the instrument through OCI 
are measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income.

c.	 Measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
		 The Microfinance classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss 	

if they are held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. Any 
other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classified as 
FVTPL.

3.5.4. Financial Liability
a.	 Measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities 

held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost i.e. directly 
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as 
incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

b.	 Measured at Amortized Cost 
	 All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified 

as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.
3.5.5.	 Derecognition
3.5.5.1.	Derecognition of Financial Assets
	 The microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the 

cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset 
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in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred or in which the microfinance neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the 
financial asset.

3.5.5.2.	De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
	 A financial liability is derecognized when, and only when it is extinguished (i.e. when 

the obligation specified in contract is discharged, cancelled or expired). If the liability 
is renegotiated with the original lender on substantially different contractual terms, the 
original liability is derecognized and new liability is recognized.

3.5.6.	 Determination of Fair Value
	 ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

(exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the 
entity has access at that date. Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at 
cost as the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with certainty at the 
reporting date. 

3.6.	 Impairment
	 The Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting 

date to assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss. The Management’s judgement is extensively used in the estimation of the 
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These 
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results 
may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made. The individual impairment 
provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on 
Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected 
to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgements about the 
number of factors including a borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable value of 
any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits to estimate the 
recoverable amount of cash flows. A collective impairment provision is established for:
Ø	 groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are 

held-to-maturity, that are not considered individually significant; and
Ø	 groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually 

impaired.
	 The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical 

trends of probability of defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and 
market conditions which may warrant for the loss being greater than the suggested by 
the historical trends.

	 For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment, Microfinance has categorized 
assets into following broad products as follows:

Ø	 Business Collateral Loan
Ø	 Individual Microenterprise loan
Ø	 Collateral Agriculture Loan
Ø	 Micro Enterprises Loan
Ø	 Primary Loan
Ø	 Business Loan
Ø	 Bio Gas Loan
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Ø	 Seasonal Loan
Ø	 Agricultural Loan
Ø	 Emergency Loan
Ø	 Discipline Loan
Ø	 Housing loan
Ø	 Fasttrack Karja
Ø	 Alternative Energy Loan
Ø	 Covid Relief Loan Assets
Ø	 Motherhood Loan Assets

	 Carve out adopted for assessment of impairment charge
	 The Microfinance has opted to apply carveout on impairment of loans and receivables. 

Accordingly, individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS 
is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB directive no. 2, higher 
of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and 
receivables. 

	 The Microfinance has insured all the loans disbursed after 15 January 2018 on Deposit 
and Credit Guarantee Fund established under the Nepal Government, thereby takes the 
benefits of provisioning only 25% of the total impairment required under NRB directive no. 2.

3.7.	 Trading Assets
	 The microfinance classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when 

they have been purchased or issued primarily for short term profit making through trading 
activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together 
for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading 
assets and liabilities are recorded and measured in the statement of financial position 
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net trading income. Interest and 
dividend income or expense is recorded in net trading income according to the terms of the 
contract, or when the right to payment has been established. Included in this classification 
are debt securities, equities, short positions and customer loans that have been acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

	 The microfinance does not own any trading assets during the reported period.
3.8.	 Property, Plant and Equipment
	 Recognition and measurement: All Property, plant and equipment (Assets) is stated at 

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure 
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent costs are included 
in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are 
incurred.

	 Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation 
on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Type of Assets Useful Life
Lease 5 Years
Computer and Accessories 4 Years
Vehicle 7 Years
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Furniture and Fixtures 5 Years
Machinery 5 Years
Others 5 Years

	 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
each statement of financial position date.  The value of the assets fully depreciated but 
continued to be in use is not considered material.

	 At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event 
that an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, 
the asset is written down immediately to the recoverable amount.

	 Assets with costs less than NPR 2,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure. 
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

3.9.	 Goodwill and Intangible assets
	 Intangible assets include externally generated/acquired capitalized software 

enhancements. Intangible assets, which have been determined to have a finite useful life, 
are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. Intangible assets 
with finite useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there is any 
indication that they are impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of 
the asset is determined and, in the event, that the asset’s carrying amount is greater than 
its recoverable amount, it is written down immediately. 

	 Goodwill reported in the financial statement is due to acquisition of Summit Microfinance.
	 Depreciation & Amortization for Income Tax Computation: The Microfinance depreciates 

property, plant and equipment following Written Down Value method applying the 
Depreciation rates prescribed by Income Tax Act, 2058. The rates used for depreciation 
of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of Intangible assets 
are as follows:

Types of Assets Depreciation Rate
Intangible Assets Rates are set by dividing the cost of the intangible over the period of 

useful life from the date of purchase of date of use which is assumed 
to be 5 years

3.10.	Investment Property and Non-current Assets held for sale
	 Investment Property
	 Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for 

capital appreciation or for both, but not sold in ordinary course of business and owner-
occupied property. 

	 There is no reportable investment property of the microfinance.
	 Non-Current Assets held for sale
	 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale and carried 

at lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The 
assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale. Any 
impairment loss on initial classification and subsequent measurement is recognized as 
an expense. Any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell (not exceeding the 
accumulated impairment loss that has been previously recognized) is recognized in the 
statement of Profit or Loss. 

	 There is no reportable asset held for sale of the microfinance for the reporting period.
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3.11.	Staff Loan & Advance
	 Staff loan and advances provided to employee on concessional interest rate has been 

amortized.

3.12.	Income Tax
3.12.1. Current Tax
	 Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, 

except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or OCI in which case 
it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the amounts 
expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the 
tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 

3.12.2. Deferred Tax
	 Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets 
and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all 
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized.

	 Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the 
assets will be realized or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or 
substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to income taxes levied 
by the same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset.

3.13.	Deposit from Members
	 Deposits from members are initially recognized at fair value, plus for those financial 

liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as 
the fair value for measuring the deposits. The microfinance does not collect any deposit 
from the public other than its member.

3.14.	Provisions, Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities
	 A provision is recognized, if as a result of a past event, the Microfinance has a present legal 

or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized 
is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation 
at that date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimate and are reversed if there is no probability of outflow of resources. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in Statement of Profit or Loss net of 
any reimbursement in other operating expenses.

	 The microfinance has filed its lawsuit against its staff in Patan High Court, through 
Government Attorney Office under Banking Offence and Punishment Act. For the related 
case of cash embezzlement, a provision of NPR 16,045,199.51 has been made for the 
same in the Financial Statement which has been reported under Note. The final decision 
has not been declared by the court till the preparation of financial statements.

	 Similarly, following is the tabulated details for contingent liability against tax demanded by 
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Large Tax Payer’s Office for which case has been filed in Revenue Tribunal. Details of 
amount deposited for filing the case has also been tabulated below. 

	 The decision against case filed for above mentioned tax demand is yet to be received 
from Revenue Tribunal.

3.15.	Revenue Recognition
	 Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

Microfinance and the consideration can be reliably measured. In some cases, this may 
not be probable until the consideration is received or until an uncertainty is removed. The 
following specific recognition criteria shall also be met for revenue recognition:

3.15.1. Interest income
	 For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets 

classified as available-for-sale and financial instruments designated at fair value through 
profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate 
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation of 
effective interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part 
of the effective interest only if considered material. Such a charges are not amortized 
over the life of the loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates 
the income that would have derived under effective interest method and are recognized 
directly in statement of profit and loss. Because of different factors like Mid-Term Loan 
disbursement and the nominal service charge levied on disbursement (within the policy 
of NRB), the microfinance assumes that the cost to benefit on amortization is not in 
favourable to the microfinance. Hence, Interest income is recognized in the profit or 
loss as per accrual basis of accounting and as per NRB Circular No. 1 of F/Y 2076-77- 
Interest Income Recognition.

	 Pursuant to 2.1 criteria for determining  loans on which interest no longer be recognized 
to the statement of profit or loss account but shall be suspended on Circular no 1, FY 
2076.077 issued to A, B & C class licensed bank and financial institutions on “guidelines 
on recognition of Interest Income, 2019”, (c) Loans where contractual payments of 
principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrears and where the “net realizable 
value” of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest; (d) 
Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months 
in arrears, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral . Thus, the microfinance 
has recognized the accrued interest as income in statement of Profit or loss as follows:
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Particulars Total AIR Summit 
& National

Summit 
LBBSL 2079-

80

National 
MFLBS 
2079.80

National 
LBBSL 
2078.79

Incremental 
AIR in FY 
2079.80

AIR of 
Nonperforming 
Loan 

137,588,339 31,977,750 105,610,589 59,609,269 47,882,034

AIR of Pass 
loan 221,791,694 56,718,042 165,073,652 110,672,760 52,520,179

Grand Total 359,380,033 88,695,792 270,684,241 170,282,029 100,402,213

	 Interest accrued on pass loan only has been recognized as interest income in fiscal year 
2079-80 & 2078-79 amounting to NPR. 52,520,179 & 45,799,576 respectively.

3.15.2. Fees and Commission
	 Fees and commission income including management fee, service charges, and syndication 

fee and forex transaction commission are recognized on accruals basis as the related 
services are performed.

3.15.3. Dividend Income
	 Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive 

payment is established. Dividend income, if any is presented in net trading income, net 
income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue 
based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.

3.15.4. Net trading income
	 Gain and losses arising in changes in fair value of financial instrument held at fair value through 

profit or loss are included in Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise.

3.16.	Interest Expenses
	 Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in profit or loss 

using effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered 
to be incidental to the microfinance’s trading operations and are presented together with 
all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income. The 
Microfinance uses Accounting Standard Board (ASB) carve- outs and treat coupon rate 
as effective interest rate. 

3.17.	Employees Benefits
	 Employee benefits include all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for 

service rendered by employees as per employment contract.

3.17.1. Defined Contribution Plan
	 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which a microfinance pays 

fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation 
to pay a further amount. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are 
recognised as expense in the profit or loss as and when they are due. The Microfinance 
operates a defined contribution plans as provident fund contribution of its employees and 
defined benefit plans for the Gratuity and leave payment requirement under its staff rules.

3.17.2. Defined Benefits Plan
	 A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
	 Gratuity Benefit is Defined Benefit Plans. The microfinance annually measures the value 
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of the promised retirement benefits for gratuity, which is a Defined Benefit Plan. Actuarial 
Valuation of Defined Benefit Plan has been carried out as per the requirement of NAS 
19 – Employee Benefits. Gain or loss arising as a result of changes in assumptions is 
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which it arises.

3.17.3. Other long-term benefits Plan
	 Leave Benefits is Other long term benefit plan. The microfinance annually measures 

the value of the promised retirement benefits for leave, which is other long term benefit 
plan. Actuarial Valuation of other long term benefit Plan has been carried out as per the 
requirement of NAS 19 – Employee Benefits. Gain or loss arising as a result of changes 
in assumptions is recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

3.18.	Foreign Currency Translation
	 The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the 

microfinance’s functional and presentation currency. Transactions in other currency 
except NPR has been translated in to NPR applying relevant exchange rate as prescribed 
by Nepal Rastra Bank.

3.19.	Leases
	 Lease accounting has been prepared according to NFRS 16. Upon lease commencement 

the microfinance recognized a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-of-use 
asset is initially measured amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred 
by the microfinance. After lease commence microfinance has measured the right-of-use 
asset using a cost model. 

	 The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is 
based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the 
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

	 The microfinance has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short 
term leases (that have a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value rentals.

3.20.	Share Capital and Reserve
3.20.1. Share Capital
	 Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual 

obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity 
instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown 
in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

	 Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period 
in which they are declared. The shares issue expenses for the issue has been charged 
in the year of issue directly through equity and disclosed in the statement of changes in 
equity along with tax impact of the same.

3.20.2. Statutory General Reserves
	 The microfinance allocates 20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution 

Act, 2073 and 50% of additional amount of Dividend declared and distributed in excess of 
15% as provisioned in Unified Directive for Microfinance 2079 under general reserve.

3.20.3. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
	 1% of net profit is set aside in the fund as per the NRB Directives for the purpose of 

corporate social responsibility. 
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	 The details of the Corporate Social Responsibility are as follows:

SN Particulars  Amount 
1 Opening Balance     10,419,287 
2 Less: Expenses During the year FY 2079.80        385,734 

2.1 Financial Literacy program            5,040 
2.2 Mask and Sanitizer            4,050 
2.3 Support for students        134,173 
2.4 Support to Nepal Police          31,550 
2.5 Sports          20,000 
2.6 Support to municipality        173,180 
2.7 Blood donation          17,741 
3 Addition from the CSR previously allocated        200,000 
5 Addition During the year (1% of Net Profit)     1,973,578 
6 Acquire from merger     1,203,892 
7 Closing Balance for the year   13,596,758 

3.20.4. Employee Training Fund
	 The fund is created for the purpose of employee training. As per the directives to 

microfinance by NRB, the microfinance needs to spend at least 3% of last fiscal year’s 
total personnel expenses for the development and trainings of the employees. Further, 
if the microfinance couldn’t spend up to the limit of 3%, the shortfall amount shall be 
transferred to the Employee Training Fund and shall be used for employee trainings in 
subsequent years. Entity has spent more than the prescribed limit during the reporting 
year hence no amount has been transferred for the said fund. However, amount transfer 
from merger has been carried forward for subsequent year.

	 The details of the employee training fund for the year are as follows:

SN Particulars Amount
1 Opening Balance -
2 Expenses During the year 7,619,203

3 Addition During the year (3% of Previous year's Personnel 
Expenses) -

4 Transfer from Merger 2,550,523
5 Closing Balance for the year 2,550,523

3.20.5. Investment Adjustment Fund
	 It is a reserve created on investment in equity instrument if the equity doesn’t get listed in 

Security Market within 2 years as per the directives issued by NRB.
	 No such situation persists; hence no amount has been transferred under the mentioned fund.

3.20.6. Regulatory Reserve
	 The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance as per 

the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not 
be regarded as free for distribution of dividend has been reported under this reserve. 
Regulatory reserve includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus created relating 
to accrued interest (interest receivable) as on Ashad end 2080 not recovered. Reserve 
on deferred tax assets change, reduction in fair value of investment in equity below cost 
price, actuarial loss etc. including Loan Loss Provision written back on restructured loan 
net of tax.
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3.20.7. Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve
	 The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance both 

positive or negative to this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of 
implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free reserve for distribution 
of dividend are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss) net of 
tax on defined benefit plan and on investment measured through OCI. 

3.20.8. Client protection fund
	 Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit. The details of client protection fund 

during the year are summarized as follows:

SN Particulars  Amount 
1 Opening Balance of Previous Year      74,288,252.19 
2 Less: Expenses During the year        4,192,715.95 

2.1 Maternity to Member           676,000.00 
2.2 Natural Disaster Support to Member           160,644.84 
2.3 Financial Literacy Program        2,612,899.71 
2.4 Waive of Loan /Interest on death member           435,961.40 
2.5 Goat/Vegetable Farming Training           307,210.00 
3 Add: Clients related funds to client protection fund      87,863,249.00 
4 Add: 1% of Net Profit        2,159,311.89 
5 Add: Transferred from Acquisition Reserve      83,480,261.03 
6 Add: Interest Received on Client Protection from Bank        1,440,569.52 

   Closing Balance during the year 245,038,927.68
 

3.20.9. Other component of equity (Due to Merger)
	 Other component of equity (Due to Merger) comprises of resulting difference at the date 

of acquisition after recognition of fair value of equity instruments issued as purchase 
consideration and fair value of net assets acquired i.e., includes equivalent amount of 
goodwill amounting to NPR 191,211,728, decrease in value of investment amounting 
to NPR (421,681) and increase in value of land amounting to NPR 30,360,000 reported 
under respective asset head in the Financial Statement.

3.20.10. Fair Value Reserve
	 The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial 

assets that are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other 
comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. 

3.20.11. Earnings per Share (EPS) including diluted EPS
	 Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary 

shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the microfinance by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit 
and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.20.12. Segment Reporting
	 The Microfinance's operating segments are organized and managed separately through 

the respective department/business managers according to the nature of products and 
services provided with each segment representing a strategic business unit. These business 
units are reviewed by Chief Executive Officer of the Microfinance. The Microfinance has 
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identified seven segments namely: Province 1, Madhesh Pradesh, Bagmati Province, 
Gandaki Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali Province and Far Western Province as the 
seven-operating segment and the segment report is set out in Note 5.4.

	 Segment report include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can 
be allocated on a reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot 
be allocated to aforesaid segment or those related to head office are unallocated and are 
included in Bagmati Province. The unallocated items generally comprise of head office 
assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities. The geographical segment 
has been identified on the basis of the location of the branches in 7 different provinces of 
the country.

3.20.13. Investment in Associates
	 For the purpose of consolidation, NAS 28 - Investments in Associates is applied. Associates 

are entities in which the Microfinance has significant influence, but not control, over the 
operating and financial policies. The Microfinance has investment in nature of Associates 
i.e., it holds more than 20%, but less than 50%, of their voting shares. 

	 The microfinance's investments in associates are initially recorded at cost and increased 
(or decreased) each year by the entity’s share of the post-acquisition profit/(loss). The 
entity ceases to recognize its share of the losses of equity accounted associates when 
its share of the net assets and amounts due from the entity have been written off in full, 
unless it has a contractual or constructive obligation to make good its share of the losses. 

	 As per the directives (4)8/077 issued to microfinances by NRB, the microfinance has to 
dispose all the investment within 2 years of investment.

	 However, microfinance does not hold more than 20% holding in any entity during the 
reporting period. 

4.1 	 Cash and Cash Equivalent			 
	 The total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at 

call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or 
less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, 
and are used by the licensed institution in the management of its short term commitments.	

 
Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 

Restated Restated
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Cash in Hand  38,274,264  18,870,891  34,612,167 
Balances with B/Fis  575,219,825  489,131,610  912,595,591 
Money at call and short notice  -    -    -   
Other  -    -    -   
Total  613,494,089  508,002,501  947,207,757 

4.2 	 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank			 
	 Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank and A class institutions for compulsory cash reserve, 

securities purchased from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and 
receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank has been presented under this account head. 	
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 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated Restated
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Statutory balances with NRB  -    9,384,173  9,384,173 
Statutory balances with BFIs  86,155,027  48,678,058  36,743,885 
Securities purchased under resale 
agreement

 -    -    -   

Other deposit and receivable from 
NRB

 32,282  -    -   

Total  86,187,309  58,062,231  46,128,058 
				  

4.3	 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions			 
	 Placements with domestic financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months 

from the acquisition date has been presented under this account head.			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Placement with domestic FIs  -    -    -   
Less: Allowances for impairement  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   

				  
4.4 	 Derivative Financial Instruments			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080  Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Held for trading  -    -    -   
Interest rate swap  -    -    -   
Currency Swap  -    -    -   
Forward exchange contract  -    -    -   
Others  -    -    -   
Held for risk management  -    -    -   
Interest rate swap  -    -    -   
Currency Swap  -    -    -   
Forward exchange contract  -    -    -   
Others  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   

				  
4.5 	 Other Trading Assets			 
	 Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the purpose of 

selling in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit 
has been presented under this account head. The other trading asset includes non derivative 
financial assets.  It  includes  Government  bonds,  NRB  Bonds,  Domestic  Corporate  bonds,  
Treasury  bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading purpose.			 
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Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Treasury Bills  -    -    -   
Government bond  -    -    -   
NRB bonds  -    -    -   
Domestic Corporate bonds  -    -    -   
Equities  -    -    -   
Other  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   
Pledged  -    -    -   
Non- Pledged  -    -    -  

 
4.6 	 Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives			 
	 Loan and advances given to microfinance financial institutions as well as other financial institutions 

has been presented under this head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank and 
financial institutions shall be deducted.	

		   

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Loan to Microfinance Institutions  -    -    -   
Loan to FIs  -    -    -   
Loan to Cooperatives  -    -    -   
Other  -    -    -   
Less: Allowances for Impairment  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   
4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080  Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Balance as at Shrawan 1  -    -    -   
Impairment loss for the year:
  Charge for the year  -    -    -   
  Recoveries/Reversal  -    -    -   
Amount written off  -    -    -   
Balance as at Ashad end  -    -    -   

4.7	 Loans and Advances to Customers			
	 The sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other 

than FIs and the amount of impairment allowances has been presented herein. Loan to employees 
provided according to the Employees Bylaws of the licensed institution has also been presented here.		 		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Loans and advances measured at 
amortized cost  17,263,765,993  11,187,276,882  9,655,403,837 

Less: Impairment allowances  (510,333,446)  (353,010,377)  (305,141,731)
   Collective Impairment  (510,333,446)  (353,010,377)  (305,141,731)
   Individual Impairment  -    -    -   
Net amount  16,753,432,547  10,834,266,505  9,350,262,107 
Loan and advances measured at 
FVTPL  -    -    -   

Total  16,753,432,547  10,834,266,505  9,350,262,107 
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4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances  - By product		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Product
Term Loan
Short term, term loan  1,460,374,059  1,373,356,164  2,037,906,248 
Long term, term loan  15,615,553,848  9,678,365,231  7,528,448,745 
Hire purchase loans
Personal Residential Loans
Staff Loans  24,645,148  24,882,728  24,175,661 
Sub-total  17,100,573,054  11,076,604,122  9,590,530,654 
Interest Receivable  163,192,939  110,672,760  64,873,184 
Grand Total  17,263,765,993  11,187,276,882  9,655,403,837 

				  
4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances  - By Collateral		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Secured
Immovable Goods  3,073,649,155  2,774,089,665  2,334,669,347 
Government Gaurantee
Collateral of Government securi-
ties
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Re-
ceipt
Group Guarantee
Personal Guarantee  14,002,278,751  8,277,631,730  7,231,685,646 
Other Collateral
Subtotal  17,075,927,907  11,051,721,394  9,566,354,993 
Unsecured
Grand Total  17,075,927,907  11,051,721,394  9,566,354,993 

				  
4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment			  			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080  Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1  353,010,377  305,141,731  172,797,464 
Impairment loss for the year:  8,750,434  47,868,647  132,344,266 
  Charge for the year  8,750,434  47,868,647  132,344,266 
  Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write- offs  -   
Exchange rate variance on foreign 
currency
Other movement/Transfer from Acquisi-
tion  148,572,634.19 
Balance at Ashad end  510,333,446  353,010,377  305,141,731 
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1  -    -    -   
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year
Exchange rate variance on foreign 
currency  -   
Other movement  -   
Balance at Ashad end  -    -   
Total allowances for impairment  510,333,446  353,010,377  305,141,731 
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4.8 	 Investment Securities			 
	 Investments made by the NLBSL in financial instruments has been presented under 

this account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value 
through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment 
in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Investment other 
than those measured at amortized cost shall be measure at fair value and changes in 
fair value shall be recognized in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income as per the 
business model adopted by the financial institutions for the specific securities. Where 
income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of 
investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares only without changing in 
the cost of investment. 				  

"a.   Following  particulars  has been disclosed  in  respect of investment  in  shares  of  other companies
(1) Name of the company
(2) Type of share (ordinary or preference), in case of preference shares, including the rate of dividend.
(3) Total number of shares subscribed (including bonus shares if received).
(4) Face value per share
(5) The cost price to licensed institution.
(6) Fair value of the shares at the end of the fiscal year.
(7) Where a company, in which the licensed institution has investment in shares, has not declared
dividend for previous 3 years, particulars indicating the same."			 

"b.  Following particulars has been disclosed in respect of investment in 
debentures and bonds of other companies

(1) Name of the company
(2) Rate of Interest
(3) Installment of Debenture/bond subscribed. 
(4) Face value per debenture/bond.
(5) Maturity date of debenture/bond 
(6) The purchase price of the debentures/bond
(7) Fair value of the debentures/bond measured at fair value
impairment  loss  if  any  on  the  investment  instruments measured at amortized cost
has been recognised as per the requirement of NFRS.
Entity has recognized, measured, presented and disclosed the investment instruments
as per the requirement of NFRSs."					  

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Investment securities measured at 
amortized cost  -    -    -   

Investment in equity measured at 
FVTOCI  2,509,914  2,313,276  3,129,231 

Total  2,509,914  2,313,276  3,129,231
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4.8.1 	 Investment in securities measured at amortized cost			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Debt Securities  -    -   
Government Bond  -    -   
Government treasury bills  -    -   
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds  -    -   
Nepal Rastra Bank deposit 
instruments  -    -   

Other  -    -   
Less: Specific allowances for 
impairment  -    -   

Total  -    -    -   
				  

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other Other comprehensive income	

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Equity Instrument
   Quoted equity securities
   Unquoted equity securities  2,509,914  2,313,276  3,129,231 
Total  2,509,914  2,313,276  3,129,231 

				  
4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities			 

Particulars
31 Ashad 2080

 Cost   Fair Value 
Investment in Unquoted equity
Nepal Finsoft Company Limited
50,000 Ordinary share of Rs 100 fully paid  5,000,000  2,509,914 
Grand Total  5,000,000  2,509,914 

				  

Particulars
 32 Ashad 2079 

 Cost   Fair Value 
Investment in Unquoted equity
Nepal Finsoft Company Limited
40,000 Ordinary share of Rs 100 fully paid  4,000,000  2,313,276 
Grand Total  4,000,000  2,313,276 

				  

Particulars
 01 Shrawan 2078 

 Cost   Fair Value 
Investment in Unquoted equity
Nepal Finsoft Company Limited
40,000 Ordinary share of Rs 100 fully paid  4,000,000  3,129,231 
Grand Total  4,000,000  3,129,231 

	
	 * Book value per share for FY 2078-79 of Nepal Finsoft Company has been considered for both 

FY 2078-79 & FY 2079-80 while computing fair value per share on non availability of audited 
book value per share of FY 2079-80.	
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4.9 	 Current tax Assets/Liability			 
	 This will include any advance payment made by the NLBSL towards income tax liabilities or 

other tax liabilities to the tax authority.			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Current tax assets  157,449,248  173,237,209  143,644,702 
Current year Income Tax Assets  157,449,248  173,237,209  143,644,702 
Tax Assets of Prior Periods  -    -    -   
Current tax liabilities  142,465,529  146,506,273  148,990,807 
Current year Income Tax Liabilities  96,432,464  146,506,273  136,655,215 
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods  46,033,065  -    12,335,593 
Total of income tax assets/(liabilities)  14,983,719  26,730,936  (5,346,105)

				  
4.10 	Investment Properties			
	 Land or land and building other than those are classified as property and equipment; and non 

current assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard has been presented under this 
account head. This shall include land, land and building acquired as non banking assets by the 
Institution but not sold. 			

Particulars
Restated  Restated 

 31 Ashad 2080  32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01  -    -   
Addition/(Disposal) during the year  -    -   
Net Changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/Transfer
Net Amount  -    -   
Investment Properties measured at Cost
Balance as on Shrawan 01  -    -   
Addition/(Disposal) during the year
Adjustment/Transfer
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss
Net Amount  -    -   
Total  -   

						    
4.11 	Property and Equipment	 						    
	 All assets of long-term nature (fixed) like land, IT equipment, fixtures and fittings, office equipment 

and appliances, vehicles, leasehold developments and capital work in progress owned by the 
NLBSL has been presented under this head.							     
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4.12 	Goodwill and Intangible Assets			 
	 Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally generated, 

trade mark etc. has been presented under this account head.

			   	

Particulars Goodwill
Software

Developed Other Total Ashad End 
Purchased

Cost
As on Shrawan 1, 2078  -    7,385,205.34  -    -   7,385,205.34 
Addition during the Year  -    -    -    -    -   
     Acquisition  -    -    -    -    -   
     Capitalization  -    -    -    -    -   
Disposal during the year  -    -    -    -    -   
Adjustment/Revaluation  -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as on Ashad end 2079  -    7,385,205  -    -    7,385,205 
Addition during the Year*  191,211,727  1,065,822  -    -    192,277,549 
     Acquisition  191,211,727  -    -    -    191,211,727 
     Capitalization  -    -    -    -    -   
    Transfer from Acquisition  -    1,065,822  -    -    1,065,822 
Disposal during the year  -    -    -    -    -   
Adjustment/Revaluation  -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as on Ashad end 2080  191,211,727  8,451,027  -    -    199,662,754 

Amortization and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1, 2078  -    5,352,209  -    -    5,352,209 
Amortisation charge for the year  -    778,973  -    -    778,973 
Impairment for the year  -    -    -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
Adjustment  -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as on Ashad end 2079  -    6,131,182  -    -    6,131,182 
Amortization charge for the 
year  753,309  753,309 

Impairment for the year  -   
Transfer from Acquisition  853,459  853,459 
Disposals  -   
Adjustment  -   
Balance as on Ashad end 2080  -    7,737,950  -    -    7,737,950 

					   
Capital Work in Progress  -    -    -    -    -   
Net Book Value   
As on Ashad end 2078  -    2,032,997  -    -    2,032,997 
As on Ashad end 2079  -    1,254,023  -    -    1,254,023 
As on Ashad end 2080  191,211,727  713,078  -    -    191,924,804 

	 * it is created during acquisition/merger of  Summit Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited	



49 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

4.13 	Deferred Taxes Assets/(Liabilities)			 
	 Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward 

of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. has been presented under this account head.	

Particulars  Deferred Tax 
Assets 

 Deferred Tax 
Liabilities 

Current Year
 Net Deferred Tax 
Assets /(Liabilities) 

Deferred tax on temporary differences on 
following items
        Loans and Advances to BFIs  -    -    -   
        Loans and Advances to Customers  187,065  (187,065)  -   
        Investment Properties  -    -    -   
        Investment Securities  747,026  -    747,026 
        Property and Equipment  -    (1,322,333)  (1,322,333)
        Employees' Defined Benefit Plan  3,772,497  3,772,497 
        Employees' Leave Liability  4,907,041  -    4,907,041 
        Lease Liabilities/ROU Assets  1,235,349  (1,331,785)  (96,436)
        Provisions  -    -    -   
        Other Temporary Differences  -    -    -   
Deferred tax on temporary differences  10,848,978  (2,841,183)  8,007,795 
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax 
losses  -    -    -   

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate  -    -    -   
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on 
year end of 2079/80  8,007,795 

Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) as on 
Shrawan 01, 2079  5,947,814 

Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) from Ac-
quisition/Merger  22,522,758 

Origination/(Reversal) during the year  2,059,981 
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recog-
nized in profit or loss  1,780,502 

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recog-
nized in Other Comprehensive Income  279,479 

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recog-
nized directly in equity  -   
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Particulars  Deferred Tax 
Assets 

 Deferred Tax 
Liabilities 

Previous Year
 Net Deferred Tax 
Assets /(Liabilities) 

Deferred tax on temporary differences on 
following items
        Loans and Advances to BFIs  -    -    -   
        Loans and Advances to Customers  233,522  (233,522)  -   
        Investment Properties  -    -    -   
        Investment Securities  -    (506,017)  (506,017)
        Property and Equipment  -    (596,384)  (596,384)
        Employees' Defined Benefit Plan  2,386,741  2,386,741 
        Employees' Leave Liability  4,400,225  -    4,400,225 
        Lease Liabilities/ROU Assets  1,024,778  (953,615)  71,162 
        Provisions  -    -   
        Other Temporary Differences  192,088  -    192,088 
Deferred tax on temporary differences  8,237,353  (2,289,538)  5,947,814 
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused 
tax losses  -    -    -   

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate  -    -    -   
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on 
year end of 2078/79  5,947,814 

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) as on 
Shrawan 01, 2078  6,201,330 

Origination/(Reversal) during the year  (253,516)

Deferred Tax (expense)/income 
recognized in profit or loss  885,332 

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized 
in Other Comprehensive Income  (1,138,848)

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized 
directly in equity			      - - - 

4.14 	Other Assets			 
	 This account will include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned above. Assets held 

for sale, non banking assets (other than land or land and building), restricted deposits with central 
banks, accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments and deposit are 
some of the items has been included under this head.			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Assets held for Sale  -    -    -   
Other Non-Banking Assets  -    -    -   
Bills Receivable  -    -    -   
Accounts Receivable  -    -   
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Accrued Income  -    -    -   
Prepayments and Deposits  -    -    -   
Income Tax Deposit (Administrative 
Review)  1,966,060  -    -   

Deferred Employee Expenditure  623,551  778,406  797,558 
Other  15,661,190  16,913,927  15,525,587 
   Stationery Stock  2,676,044  2,664,756  2,981,902 
   NIBL ACE Capital Dividend Advance  6,432,924  7,513,718  5,014,288 
   Others  6,552,223  6,735,452  7,529,397 
Grand Total  18,250,802  17,692,333  16,323,145 

4.15 	Due to Bank and Financial Institutions			 
	 The balances  in  accounts maintained  with  the  institution  by other local and foreign  banks  and 

financial institution has been presented under this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, 
balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial 
institution has been presented under this account head.

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Borrowing from BFIs  -    -    -   
Settlement and Clearing Ac-
counts  -    -    -   

Other  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   

				  
4.16 	Due to Nepal Rastra Bank			 
	 This account head contains the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount payable to 

NRB also includes amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort, 
deposit from NRB etc.			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Refinance from NRB  -    -    -   
Standing Liquidity Facility  -    -    -   
Lender of Last Resort facility from 
NRB  -    -    -   

Securities sold under repurchase 
agreements  -    -    -   

Other Payable to NRB  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    
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4.17 Derivative Financial instruments			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Held for Trading  -    -    -   
    Interest Rate Swap  -    -    -   
    Currency Swap  -    -    -   
    Forward Exchange Contracts  -    -    -   
    Others  -    -    -   
Held for Risk Management  -    -    -   
    Interest Rate Swap  -    -    -   
    Currency Swap  -    -    -   
    Forward Exchange Contracts  -    -    -   
    Others  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   

4.18 	Deposits from customers			 
	 All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB has been presented 

under this account head. 			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Institutions Customers:  -    -   
   Term deposits  -    -    -   
   Call deposits  -    -    -   
   Other  -    -    -   
Individual Customers:  4,523,949,753  3,127,845,926  2,591,135,324 
   Term deposits  -   
   Saving deposits  -   
   Savings from Members  4,523,949,753  3,127,845,926  2,591,135,324 
   Other
Total  4,523,949,753  3,127,845,926  2,591,135,324 

				  
4.19 	Borrowing			 
	 All domestic as well as foreign borrowing other than interbank borrowing and borrowing from 

Nepal Rastra Bank has been presented under this heading. It includes borrowing from Nepal 
Government, borrowing from other domestic institutions, borrowing from foreign bank and financial 
institutions, multilateral development banks etc.			 

			    



53 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -    102,899,173 
Other licensed Institutions  9,871,371,063  6,360,090,596  6,244,759,352 
Other
Sub total  9,871,371,063  6,360,090,596  6,347,658,525 
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks
Other institutions
Sub total  -    -   
Total  9,871,371,063  6,360,090,596  6,347,658,525

 
4.20 	Provisions			 
	 A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the NLBSL has a present legal or  

constructive  obligation  that  can  be  estimated  reliably,  and  it  is  probable  that  an  outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision for redundancy, provision 
for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal issues and tax litigation, credit 
commitments and guarantees etc. shall be presented under this account head. Followings are 
the additional clarification on accounts presented under this account head.			 
	

	 "(a) Provision for Redundancy 
It shall include benefits payable as a result of employment being terminated or based on a 
dismissal  plan of the licensed institution.  Provision for  employees' termination  benefits like 
voluntary retirement scheme has been presented under this account head."			

	 "(b) Provision for restructuring 
Restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business locations or 
relocation in a region, changes in management structure, fundamental reorganizations that have 
a material effect on the nature and focus of the  institution’s operations etc. The provision of 
restructuring that is recognized as per the requirement of NFRSs has been presented under this 
account head"			 

	 "(c)  Pending legal issues and tax litigation 
Provisions recognized for any pending legal issues and tax litigation matters has been 
presented under this account head."			 

	 "(d) Onerous contracts 
Provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
licensed institution from a contract is lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation 
under the contract. The provision amount that is recognized for onerous contract as per NFRSs 
has been presented under this heading."			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Provisions for redundancy  -    -    -   
Provision for restructuring  -    -    -   
Pending legal issues and tax litigation  -    -    -   
Onerous contracts  -    -    -   
Other  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   
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4.20.1 Movement in Provisions			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Balance at Shrawan 1  -    -    -   
Provisions made during the year  -    -    -   
Provisions used during the year  -    -    -   
Provisions reversed during the year  -    -    -   
Unwind of discount  -    -    -   
Balance at  Ashad end  -    -    -   

				  
4.21 Other Liabilities		
	 Any residual liabilities not captured above, has be presented under an appropriate head in this 

account.  Liabilities  relating  to  employees  benefits  like  liabilities  for  defined  benefit  obligation 
gratuity  and  pension  fund,  liabilities  for  long-service  leave,  cash  settled  share  based  
payment liabilities, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals, Interest payable 
on deposit and borrowing, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. has been presented under this 
account head.	

		  		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 
2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Liabilities for emloyees defined ben-
efit obligations  51,894,017  7,955,802  7,560,657 

Liabilities for long-service leave  52,052,268  14,667,416  16,046,794 
Short term employee benefits  2,073,596  -    1,423,847 
Bills payable  -    -    -   
Creditors and accruals  588,107  5,817,551  2,878,547 
Interest payable on deposits  471,867,499  281,236,640  189,013,446 
Interest payable on borrowing  -    753,956  2,304,714 
Unpaid Dividend  16,690,872  17,778,548  8,083,737 
Employee bonus payable  40,744,367  59,049,604  53,791,881 
Other Liabilities  141,147,707  231,928,535  156,864,977 
    Audit Fee Payable  641,371  394,690  624,104 
    TDS Payable  11,963,242  2,109,600  6,624,192 
    Staff Welfare Fund  795,797  739,337  307,237 
    Micro Finance Welfare Fund  -    -    -   
     Liabilities under Lease (Rental Lease)  4,117,831  3,415,926  -   
    Staff Payable  -    -    -   
    Service Charge Payble to Clients  52,106,331  74,270,862  -   
     Others  71,523,134  150,998,121  149,309,444 
     Total  777,058,432  619,188,054  437,968,600 
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4.21.1. A Defined Benefit Obligation			 
	 The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Present value of unfunded obligations  12,574,989  7,955,802  7,560,657 
Total present value of obligations  12,574,989  7,955,802  7,560,657 
Fair value of plan assets  -    -    -   
Present value of net obligations  12,574,989  7,955,802  7,560,657 
Recognised liability for defined benefit 
obligations  12,574,989  7,955,802  7,560,657

 
4.21.2 A : Plan Assets			 
	 Plan assets comprise			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Equity securities  -    -    -   
Government bonds  -    -    -   
Bank deposit  -    -    -   
Other  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   

			 
4.21.3 A : Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 
2080 

 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 
1  7,955,802  7,560,657  7,560,657 

Actuarial losses/(gain)  549,915  (4,612,116)
Benefits paid  (66,558)  (696,673)
Current service costs; Past Service 
Cost and interest  4,135,830  5,703,934 

Adjusments
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad 
end  12,574,989  7,955,802  -   

			 
4.21.4 A : Movement in the fair value of plan assets			 

Particulars
 31 Ashad 

2080 

Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 

2079 
 01 Shrawan 2078 

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1  -    -    -   
Contributions paid into the plan  -    -   
Benefits paid during the year  -    -   
Actuarial (losses) gains  -    -   
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Adjusments  -   
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end  -    - 
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4.21.5 A : Amount recognised in profit or loss			 

 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated
 32 Ashad 2079 

Current service costs  2,435,442  5,131,320 
Past service costs-(non Vested)  -    -   
Past service costs (Vested)  -    -   
Interest on obligation  1,700,388  572,614 
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Total  4,135,830  5,703,934 

			 
4.21.6 A : Amount recognised in other comprehensive income			

 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Acturial (gain)/loss  549,915  (4,612,116)
Total  549,915  (4,612,116)

	
4.21.7 A : Actuarial  assumptions			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Discount rate 10.00% 10.66% 7.58%

Expected return on plan asset 10.00% 10.66% 7.58%

Future salary increase 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Withdrawal rate

    0 to 3 Years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

    3 to 5 Years 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
	    		

4.21.1. 	 B Long Term Benefit Obligation			
	 The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :	

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Present value of unfunded obligations  16,356,802  14,667,416  16,046,794 
Present value of funded obligations  -    -    -   
Total present value of obligations  16,356,802  14,667,416  16,046,794 
Fair value of plan assets  -    -    -   
Present value of net obligations  16,356,802  14,667,416  16,046,794 
Recognised liability for defined benefit 
obligations

 16,356,802  14,667,416  16,046,794

 
4.21.2 	 B : Plan Assets			 
	 Plan assets comprise			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Equity securities  -    -    -   
Government bonds  -    -    -   
Bank deposit  -    -    -   
Other  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   
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4.21.3 	 B : Movement in the present value of benefit obligations			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Long Term benefit obligations at 
Shrawan 1  14,667,416  16,046,794  16,046,794 

Actuarial losses/(gain)  2,019,695  (4,556,365)
Benefits paid  (7,128,856)  (4,864,150)
Current service costs; Past Ser-
vice Cost and interest  6,798,547  8,041,137 

Adjustment for Previous Years
Long Term benefit obligations at 
Ashad end  16,356,802  14,667,416 

	
4.21.4 	 B : Movement in the fair value of plan assets			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 

Fair value of plan assets at 
Shrawan 1  -    -    -   

Contributions paid into the plan  -    -    -   
Benefits paid during the year  -    -    -   
Actuarial (losses) gains  -    -    -   
Expected return on plan assets  -    -    -   
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end  -    -    -   

			 
4.21.5 	 B : Amount recognised in profit or loss		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated
 32 Ashad 2079 

Current service costs  4,169,156  6,855,081 
Past service costs-(non Vested)  -    -   
Past service costs (Vested)  -   
Acturial (gain)/loss  2,019,695  (4,556,365)
Interest on obligation  2,629,391  1,186,056 
Expected return on plan assets  -   
Total  8,818,242  3,484,772 

	
4.21.6 	 B : Amount recognised in other comprehensive income		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated
 32 Ashad 2079 

Acturial (gain)/loss  -    -   
Total  -    -   

			 
4.21.7 	 B : Actuarial  assumptions			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Discount rate 10.00% 10.66% 7.58%
Expected return on plan asset 10.00% 10.66% 7.58%
Future salary increase 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal rate
    0 to 3 Years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
    3 to 5 Years 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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4.22 	 Debt secutities issued			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Debt securities issued designated as 
at fair value through profit or loss  -    -    -   

Debt securities issued at amortised cost  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -   

			 
4.23 	 Subordinate Liabilities			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Redeemable preference shares  -    -    -   
Irredemable cumulative prefer-
ence shares (liabilities compo-
nent)

 -    -    -   

Other  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -

4.24 	 Share Capital						    
	 Capital structure of NLBSL has been mentioned under this heading. Amount credited in share 

capital by issuing bonus shares utilizing the accumulated profit and reserves has also been 
disclosed under this heading. This heading includes paid up amount of ordinary share capital 
and equity component of preference share capital. The convertible preference shares which 
includes an option for the holder of the shares to convert the preferred shares into a fixed number 
of ordinary shares at any time after a predetermined date, irredeemable preference share and 
perpetual debt instruments, the equity component that is recognized and measured as per NFRSs 
as equity.	

					   

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Ordinary Shares Capital 1,084,206,219.52  586,674,973.49  419,053,552.50 
Convertible Preference Shares 
(Equity component only)  -    -    -   

Irredemable Preference Shares 
(Equity component only)  -    -    -   

Perpetual debt (Equity component 
only)  -    -    -   

Total 1,084,206,219.52  586,674,973.49  419,053,552.50 
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List of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% shares						    
S.N Name of Shareholders Paid-up Amount % Type
1 Nepal Investment Mega Bank limited  141,453,117 13.05% Promoter
2 Kumari Bank Limited  102,876,288 9.49% Promoter
3 Prime Commercial Bank Limited  20,400,503 1.88% Promoter
4 Garima Bikas Bank Limited  13,480,725 1.24% Promoter
5 Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited  13,247,080 1.22% Promoter
6 Gurkhas Finance Limited  10,114,273 0.93% Promoter
7 NRN Infrastructure Bank Limited  8,751,500 0.81% Promoter
8 Siddhartha Bank Limited  8,679,906 0.80% Promoter
9 Prakash Kapuri  8,140,356 0.75% Promoter
10 Investment and Finance Company  7,385,749 0.68% Promoter
11 Tirtha Raj Dhakal  6,603,009 0.61% Promoter
12 Hari Prasad Kadariya  6,603,009 0.61% Promoter
13 Dipika Oli  6,602,804 0.61% Promoter
14 Himalayan Bank Limited  5,828,715 0.54% Promoter
15 Nabil Bank Limited  5,828,715 0.54% Promoter
16 Best Finance Limited  5,737,768 0.53% Promoter

Total 371,733,516 34.29%
		
Paid up share capital of the Laghubittiya has moved over the years as follows:			 
Financial Year Cumulative Paid Up Capital Remarks
2073 Ashad end  70,000,000 
       Issue of Public Shares  30,000,000 
       Issue of Bonus Share  -   
2074 Ashad end  100,000,000 
       Issue of Bonus Share  20,356,000 
2075 Ashad end  120,356,000 
       Issue of Bonus Share  30,089,000 
2076 Ashad end  150,445,000 
       Issue of Bonus Share  113,162,250 
       Issue of Fraction Shares  438,000 
2077 Ashad end  264,045,250 
       Issue of Bonus Share  55,449,503 
     Acquistion of Mahila Sahayatra  99,558,800 
2078 Ashad end  419,053,553  
       Issue of Bonus Share  167,621,421 
2079 Ashad end  586,674,974 
       Issue of Bonus Share  88,001,246 
Issue for Acquisition of Summit Laghubitta  409,530,000 
2080 Ashad end  1,084,206,220
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4.25	 Reserves						    
	 Licensed institution shall include the amounts received from allocation of profits or retained 

earnings in connection with maintaining reserves or created from any other process. Normally, 
amount shall be credited to this heading having debited the accumulated profit and while using 
these reserves, the concerned reserve account shall have to be debited. Followings are the 
additional clarification of account head under reserve.					   

"(a) 	 General Reserve:
	 General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed from appropriation 

of net profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 shall be included. No type 
of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be distributed from the amount in general/statutory reserve. 
Approval of NRB shall be required in order to use the amount in this reserve. Twenty percent of 
net profit (excluding OCI) has been transffered as per the provisions of Banks and Financial 
Institutions Act, 2073 under this reserve head."						    

"(b) 	 Exchange Equalization Reserve
	 Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. An institution which has earned foreign 

exchange revaluation gain on foreign currency other than Indian currency has to allocate 25 
percent of such revaluation gain to this reserve as per provision of the Bank and Financial 
Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange equalization reserve as per the provision of 
the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be presented under this heading.However, above 
provision is not applicable for the reporitng period."						    

"(c)  	Fair Value Reserves
	 The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets 

that  are  measured  at  fair  value  and  the  changes  in  fair  value  is  recognized  in  other 
comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in 
fair value of those financial assets has been presented under this account head."		

"(d) 	 Assets Revaluation Reserve
	 Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, 

Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve  as  
a  cushion  against  unexpected  losses  but  may  not  be  fully  available  to  absorb unexpected 
losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax consequences of revaluation. 
No such reserve for the reporting period."						    

						    
"(e) 	 Capital Reserve
	 The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and 

which shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend but shall be avaiable for issue of fully 
paid bonus shares. The amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of remaining amount 
for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of merger 
and acquisition etc comes under this heading. In our case, amount remaining after issuing share 
capital  in the swap ratio of 1:0.73  to Summit (arising out of merger/acquisition) has been reported 
under this head"					   

"(f)  	 Special Reserve
	 Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special 

instruction of NRB shall represent special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by 
debiting retained earning account shall be presented under this heading. No such reserve has 
been reported in our case. "						    

"(g) 	 Capital Redemption Reserve
	 This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards Redeemable 

Non-Convertible Preference Shares. Not applicable for reporting period"				  
		

"(h) 	 Dividend Equalization Fund
	 For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of profit during the 
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year of profit making may be transferred shall be  presented under this account head. Dividend  
may  be  distributed  by  debiting  this  account  with  the  approval  of  the  Board  of Directors and 
endorsed by the General meeting. No such fund for the reporting period"

"(i)  	 Capital Adjustment/Equalization Fund
	 Any amount that is allocated from the  retained profit to a reserve that is created for the raising 

capital of the entity as well as calls is advance amount to make up minimum paid up capital 
amount shall be presented under this account head. No reportbale amount under this head for 
the reporting period"						    

"(j)  	 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
	 The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating profit has been 

presented under this account head. One per cent of net profit (excluding OCI) has been transffered 
under this head"						    

"(k) 	 Investment Adjustment Reserve
	 It  is  a  regulatory  reserve  created  as  a  cushion  for  adverse  price  movements  in  entity's 

investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank. No such reserve for the reporting 
year"						    

"(l) 	 Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve
	 Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee 

defined benefit obligations has been presented under this account head. "			 
	

"(m) 	Regulatory Reserve
	 The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the institution to this reserve as per 

the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs and which shall not be regarded 
as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) has been presented under this 
account head. The amount allocated to this reserve includes interest income recognized but not 
received in cash, difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive, impairment on loan and 
advance as per NFRSs (in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRSs), amount equals 
to deferred tax assets change, actual loss recognized in other comprehensive income, amount of 
goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc."						    

"(n) 	 Client Protection Fund\
	 This fund constitutes amount allocated from profit as per NRB directives for the purpose of the 

welfare of the customers."						    

"(o) 	 Other Component of equity (due to Merger)
	 It is the reserve created during acquisiton of Summit Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 

(Summit) while computing Goodwill. Goodwill is computed by subtracting Fair value of 
assets taken less fair value of liabilities borne from purchase consideration (it is computed 
by multiplying number of shares transffered for acquisition of Summit as per swap ratio 
calculated by Due Diligence Audit (DDA) with Book value per share of National microfinance) 
at the date of acquisition of Summit. Goowill has been reported under Note 4.12.   
It includes amount equal to goodwill and difference of fair value of land & investment against 
the cost of those items at the time of acquaition of Summit, since all the assets & liabilities of 
Summit has been taken at fair value for the purpose of merger."					   
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"(p) 	 Other Reserve Fund
	 Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) shall be 

presented under this by disclosing accounting heads."					   

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 
2078 

Statutory general reserve  454,584,510  
296,601,955 

 
221,046,172 

Capital reserve  151,470,000  -    46,851,200 
Exchange equilisation reserve  -    -    -   
Investment adjustment reserve  -    -    -   
Corporate social responsibility reserve  13,596,758  10,419,287  6,890,184 
Client Protection Fund  245,038,928  74,288,252  70,510,463 
Capital redemption reserve  -    -    -   
Regulatory reserve  144,425,244  77,207,904  48,354,171 
Assets revaluation reserve  -    -    -   
Fair value reserve  (838,345)  (571,169)  -   
Dividend equalisation reserve  -    -    -   
Actuarial Reserve  2,843,541  3,228,481  -   
Deferred Tax Reserve  20,517,142  (4,065,596)  (3,812,080)
Other Reserve  -    -    -   
Staff Training Fund  2,550,523  -    -   
Other component of equity (due to Merger)*  221,150,045  -    -   
Total  1,255,338,346  457,109,115  389,840,110 

		

	 * includes equivalent amount of goodwill amounting to NPR 191,211,728, decrease in value 
of investment amounting to NPR (421,681) and increase in value of land amounting to NPR 
30,360,000 reported under respective asset head in the Financial Statement

4.26 	Contingent liabilities and commitments			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Contingent liabilities  -    -    -   
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities  -    -   
Capital commitment  -    -    -   
Lease Commitment  -    -    -   
Litigation  13,983,135  7,877,240  -   
Others
Total  13,983,135  7,877,240  -
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4.26.1: 	 Capital Commitments			 
	 Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution  but provision has not 

been made in financial statements			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Capital commitments in relation to 
Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for  -    -   
Sub total
Capital commitments in relation to 
Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub total
Total  -    -    -  

 
4.26.2: 	 Lease commitments			 

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated  Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079  01 Shrawan 2078 
Operating lease commitments
"Future minimum lease payments 
under non cancellable  
operating lease, where the bank is 
lessee"
    Not later than 1 year  -    -    -   
     Later than 1 year but not later than 
     5 years  -    -    -   

    Later than 5 years  -    -    -   
Sub total  -    -    -   

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non 
cancellable operating lease, where the bank 
is lessee
      Not later than 1 year  -    -    -   
      Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  -    -    -   
     Later than 5 years  -    -    -   
Sub total  -    -    -   
Grand total  -    -    -   

			 
4.26.3: 	 Litigation			 
	 Contigent tax liabilities relating to income tax
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4.27  	Interest Income		
	 The interest income recognized as per NFRSs has been presented under this head. This heading 

includes  interest  income  on  loan  and  advance,  investment  securities  except  on  those  
investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and and cash equivalent, 
due from Nepal Rastra Bank,  due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc.		

 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated
 32 Ashad 2079 

Interest on Cash and cash equivalent  15,540,557  9,972,015 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -   
Placement with bank and financial institutions  -    -   
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions  -    -   
Loans and advances to customers  1,650,086,542  1,615,475,683 
Investment securities  -    -   
Loan and advances to staff  869,104  958,661 
Other  -    -   
Total Interest Income  1,666,496,203  1,626,406,358 

		
4.28 	Interest Expense		
	 Interest accrued on deposits collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained, subordinated 

iabilities, amount due to bank and financial institutions, due to NRB etc as per NFRS. has beeen 
presented under this heading.		

		
 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Due to bank and financial institutions  -    -   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -   
Deposits from customers  232,578,830.23  183,268,596.61 
Borrowing  773,411,811.08  585,902,173.24 
Debt securities issued  -    -   
Subordinated liabilities  -    -   
Other (Interest on Lease Liability)  527,130.05  376,988.69 
Total Interest Expenses  1,006,517,771.36  769,547,758.54 

		
4.29	 Fees and commission income		
	 Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the institution to its customers. 

Fee income arises on the execution of a significant act completed or from provision of services, 
service fees , Loan documentation fee, loan management fee, commitment fee, card issuance 
and renewal fees, prepayment and swap fee, remittance fee, , brokerage etc. has been presented 
under this heading. The fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest 
rate on the financial assets are included  in the  measurement  of the  effective  interest rate  and  
shall  not  be recognized as income, however immaterial amount can be recognized in profit or 
loss account as income.		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080  Restated 
 32 Ashad 2079 

Loan administration fees  -    -   
Service fees  73,372,052  94,105,834 
Commitment fees  -    -   
Card issuance fees  -    -   
Prepayment and swap fees  -    -   
Remittance fees  -    -   
Brokerage fees  -    -   
Other fees and commision income  16,295,720  16,792,520 
Total Fees and Commission Income  89,667,773  110,898,354
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4.30 	Fees and commission Expense		
	 Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the institution has been 

presented under this account head. This account head include card related fees, guarantee 
commission, brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that are integral to the 
effective interest rate on the financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective 
interest rate and has not be recognized as expense.		 		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated
 32 Ashad 2079 

Brokerage  -    -   
ATM management fees  -    -   
VISA/Master card fees  -    -   
Guarantee commission  -    -   
DD/TT/Swift fees.  -    -   
Remittance fees and commission  -    -   
Other fees and commission expense  -    -   
Total Fees and Commission Expense  -    -   

		
4.31 	Net Trading Income		
	 Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and 

includes all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized 
changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities.		

		
Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 		   Restated 

 32 Ashad 2079 
Changes in fair value of trading assets  -    -   
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets  -    -   
Interest income on trading assets  -    -   
Dividend income on trading assets  -    -   
Gain/loss foreign exchange transation  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Net Trading Income  -    -   		

4.32 	Other Operating Income		
	 Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads above 

has been booked and presented under this head. It includes foreign exchange revaluation gain/
loss, gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on available for sale securities, 
gain/loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of investment properties, operating 
lease income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver, finance income of finance lease etc.		
  Restated
Particulars  31 Ashad 2080  32 Ashad 2079 
Foreign exchange revauation gain  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities  -    -   
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties  -    -   
Dividend on equity instruments  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of investment property  -    -   
Operating lease income  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   		
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4.33	  Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses		
	 It  includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and advances to customers, loan and advances 

to bank and financial institutions, investment securities, placement with bank and financial 
institutions, property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, investment properties etc. 
as per NFRs	

	

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFIs  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to 
customers  8,750,434.38  47,868,646.81 

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFIs  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible 
assets  -    -   

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on restructure written back  -   
Total  8,750,434.38  47,868,646.81 		

4.34 	Personnel Expenses		
	 All expenses related to employees of a institution has been included under this head. Expenses 

covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to 
provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff bonus, finance expense 
under NFRSs, cash-settled share-based payments etc.

		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Salary  114,204,060.15  90,878,430.49 
Allowances  96,354,037.89  78,659,949.90 
Provident Fund  10,792,487.40  8,995,262.75 
Training & development expense  7,619,208.52  5,652,641.03 
Uniform  -    -   
Medical  -    -   
Insurance  6,734,455.95  4,732,678.12 
Leave encashment  8,341,700.80  3,565,977.66 
Gratuity Expense  4,612,371.20  5,757,713.67 
Other expenses related to staff  12,874,339.06  11,280,166.21 
Subtotal  261,532,660.97  209,522,819.83 
Employees bonus  34,509,239.01  58,155,539.45 
Grand Total  296,041,899.98  267,678,359.29 

		
4.35 Other Operating Expenses		
	 All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and 

presented under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head  include 
office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors' emoluments, 
remuneration, professional and legal expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost 
expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of non financial assets, onerous lease provisions etc.	
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Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Directors' fee  1,546,000.00  1,159,000.00 
Directors' expense  391,236.55  645,964.31 
Auditors' remuneration  417,680.00  400,000.00 
Other audit related expense  160,273.20  304,385.05 
Professional and legal expense  311,472.00  616,600.00 
Office administration expense (4.35.1)  74,346,927.25  70,570,048.45 
Operating Lease expense  21,779,067.85  20,968,119.41 
Operating expense of investment properties  -    -   
Corporate social responsibility expense  -    -   
Client Protection Expenses  -    -   
Bank Expenses and service charge  16,847,667.02  14,249,628.47 
Onerous lease provisions  -    -   
Other  9,112,954.17  9,672,000.24 
Total  124,913,278  118,585,746 		

4.35.1 Office Administration Expenses		

 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Electricity Expenses  1,803,984.74  1,846,682.07 
Repair & Maintenance  -    -   
(a) Building  -    -   
(b) Vehicle  855,361.94  616,915.55 
(c) Computer & Accessories  -    -   
(d) Office equipment and furniture  502,447.66  23,075.00 
(e) Other  1,700.00  483,897.84 
Insurance  624,798.23  580,141.30 
Postage, Telephone, Telex, Fax, internet  6,826,498.03  6,796,562.42 
Printing & Stationery  3,134,761.31  4,331,570.13 
Newspaper, Books & Journals  43,340.00  77,240.00 
Advertisements & business promotion  434,815.80  181,002.00 
Donation  -    -   
Security Expenses  -    -   
Deposit & loan guarantee premium  45,249,456.99  41,306,527.24 
Travelling allowance & expenses  6,614,859.00  6,525,861.48 
Entertainment  -    -   
AGM Expenses  1,084,171.20  712,983.95 
Other  -    -   
(a) Fuel Expenses  1,024,776.20  727,488.39 
(b) Annual Supporting Cost  4,241,513.21  4,781,212.27 
(c) Office Expenses  -    -   
(d) Renewal Fee Expenses  1,056,876.98  1,578,888.81 
(e) Consultancy Fee Expenses  -    -   
(f) Joint Acquisition Committee Expenses  847,565.96  -   
(g) Miscellaneous  -    -   
Total  74,346,927  70,570,048 
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4.36 	Depreciation and Amortisation		

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Depreciation on property and equipment  8,604,131.84  9,445,374.09 
Depreciation on investment property  -    -   
Amortisation of intangible assets  753,309.03  778,973.04 
Total  9,357,440.87  10,224,347.13 

		
4.37	 Non Operating Income/Expenses		
	 Income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions shall be 

presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this account head shall include 
loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision, expense of restructuring etc

	

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Recovery of Loan written off  -    -   
Other Income  -    -   
Total Non Operating Income  -    -   

		
4.38 	Non Operating expense			 

 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Loan written off  -    -   
Redundancy provision  -    -   
Expense of restructuring  -    -   
Other expense  -    -   
Total Non Operating Expenes  -    -   

		
4.39 	Income Tax Expenses		
	 The amount of income tax on net taxable profit shall be recognized and presented under this 

account head. This account head include current tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred 
tax income.			 

 Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
 Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 
Current Tax Expenses  96,432,464  146,506,273 
Current Year  96,432,464  146,506,273 
Adjustment for Prior Years  -    -   
Deferred tax Expenses  (1,780,502)  (885,332)
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences  (1,780,502)  (885,332)
Change in tax Rate
Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses
Total Income tax expense  94,651,962  145,620,941 
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4.39.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit		   

Particulars  31 Ashad 2080 
Restated

 32 Ashad 2079 

Profit Before Tax  310,583,151  479,220,983 
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30%  93,174,945  143,766,295 
Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are not deductible 
for tax purpose  2,429,859  2,547,890 

Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income  -    -   
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other Items  (1,191,212)  192,088 
Total Income Tax Expenses  94,413,593  146,506,273 
Effective Tax Rate 30.40% 30.57%

5.	 Disclosures & Additional Information
5.1	 Risk Management
	 In compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on 6 "Corporate Governance", the Board 

of microfinance has established a Risk Management Committee with clear terms of 
reference. As at the date of this report, the microfinance’s Risk Management Committee 
comprised of the following: 

S.N. Members of Risk Management Committee Designation
1 Kshitij Khadka Co-ordinator
2 Pradit Kumar Regmi Member
3 Kashi Ram Bhattarai Member 
4 Shyam Bahadur Gurung Member Secretary

	 The Committee meets at least four times annually. The committee oversees and reviews 
the fundamental prudential risks including operational, credit, market, reputational, capital 
and liquidity risk etc. 

	 The responsibilities of Risk Management Committee are as follows: 
a.	 Formulate policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and 

control all major risk categories. 
b.	 Ensuring the microfinance has clear, comprehensive and well documented policies 

and procedure. 
c.	 Defining the microfinance’s overall risk tolerance in relation to credit risk.
d.	 Ensuring that microfinance’s significant risks exposure is maintained at prudent 

levels and consistent with the available capital.
	 Apart from Board Level Risk Management Committee the other committees and groups 

as mentioned below supports for Overall Risk Management. 
i)	 Risk Governance
	 Risk management committee of the microfinance has formed to review the credit 

risk, market risk and liquidity risk of the microfinance. Apart from this the microfinance 
has formed the Assets Liability Management Committee to monitor Liquidity risk 
as well as market risk, AML CFT committee in order to monitor the operational 
risk. The committee and subcommittee have effectively discharged their duties & 
responsibility.
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	 Risk Management Department conducts periodical financial surveillance and monitoring. 
In addition to this, the risk management committee analyse the Stress testing of the 
microfinance as required by Nepal Rastra Bank and its impact and corrective action to 
mitigate the risk. 

	 Through its risk management framework, the microfinance seeks to efficiently manage 
credit, market and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Microfinance’s commercial 
activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal 
consequence of any business undertaking. As part of this framework, the microfinance 
uses a set of principles that describe its risk management culture. The microfinance has 
developed Risk Management Policy, Guideline & Framework 2017 to manage Credit risk, 
Market risk and liquidity risk. 

	 The major risk areas and mitigation mechanism is as given below; 
1)	 Credit Risk
	 Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to 

pay the microfinance in accordance with agreed terms. 
	 The microfinance has Credit Policy Guidelines (CPG) that, inter alia, consist of areas 

of lending, eligibility of borrower, loan application format and requirement, necessary 
documents for processing loans, risk assessment areas, loan approval authority and 
other general credit principles. The CPG has been formulated by keeping in mind the 
prudential norms given by NRB. 

	 A standardized loan application forms has been in use for facilitating collection and 
analysis of all the relevant data for evaluating credit worthiness and proper evaluation 
of the credit risk of the prospective borrower. The factors considered in evaluating loan 
applications normally included prospects of the business, management of the firm/
company, financial analysis- income statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement, key 
financial indicators, key risk and mitigates. Further, inspection and supervision are also 
conducted before approval of the loan for pre-analysis and after the disbursement of loan 
as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

2)	 Operational Risk
	 Operational risk is the prospect of loss of resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, 

systems or policies, employee errors, system failures, fraud or other criminal activity, any 
event that disrupts business processes. 

	 Operational risk exposures are managed through a consistent set of management 
processes that drive risk identification, assessment, control and monitoring. For the control 
of operational risk of institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee Bylaws, 
operational manual, AML/CFT policy, Suspicious Transaction Identification Procedure, 
politically exposed person policy, which guides the day to day operation.

	 Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and for 
maintaining an effective control environment across the organization. Risk control owners 
have responsibility for the control of operational risk arising from the management of the 
following activities: External Rules & Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability, Damage 
or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security, Internal Fraud or Dishonesty, External Fraud, 
Information Security, Processing Failure, and Model. Operational risks can arise from all 
business lines and from all activities carried out by the microfinance. Operational Risk 
management approach seeks to ensure management of operational risk by maintaining 
a complete process universe defined for all business segments, products and functions 
processes. 
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3)	 Market Risk
	 Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered 

under Market Risk Management. Market Risk is the potential for loss of earnings or 
economic value due to adverse changes in financial market rates or prices. Institution 
exposure to market risk arises principally from customer driven transactions. 

	 In line with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, the microfinance focuses 
on risk management in addition to that Interest rate risk is assessed at a regular interval 
to strengthen market risk management. The market risk is managed within the risk 
tolerances and market risk limits set by ALCO. ALCO regularly meets, analyse and takes 
decision over the Market Risk by analysing the internal as well as external factor.

4)	 Liquidity Risk
	 Liquidity risk is the potential that the microfinance either does not have sufficient liquid 

financial resources available to meet all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access 
these financial resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk is managed by ALCO. The 
ALCO has developed the Unified Treasury circular for overall liquidity management of 
microfinance.

5)	 Reputational Risk
	 Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost 

revenue; increased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or destruction of shareholder 
value. 

	 Reputational risk is managed by the management committee which are responsible for 
protecting the institution’s reputation locally and has the responsibility to ensure that the 
Microfinance does not undertake any activities that may cause material damage to the 
reputation of institution.

6)	 Employee Benefit Risk
	 Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the 

microfinance’s defined benefits gratuity and leave encashment schemes. 
	 The gross obligation for gratuity is calculated considering the salary at the time of 

retirement of the individual staff and number of years’ service with the microfinance. The 
home leave can be accumulated for maximum period of 60 days for total period served 
by individual staff. The gross obligation for leave encashment is calculated considering 
the last drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days for leave encashment.

7)	 Internal Control
	 The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial 

activities in a manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, 
avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To achieve 
this, the Board has adopted policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, 
risk mitigation and control/monitoring.  

	 The effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by 
the Board, its Committees, Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has 
reviewed the effectiveness of the Microfinance’s system of internal control during the year 
and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. The microfinance has inhouse Internal 
Audit function to maintain independency on the internal control system of institution. 
The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness 
of internal control structures across the Company through its program of business/unit 
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audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined 
by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly forwarded 
to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive 
Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.   

8)	 Any Other Risk
	 Compliance Risk
	 Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or loss 

to reputation due to failure to comply with laws, rules and standards.
	 National Microfinance is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the 

areas of accountability, transparency and business ethics. The Microfinance aims at a 
zero tolerance of misconduct and corruption. 

	 In the day-to-day operations the three lines of defence model defines the roles and 
responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk in the Microfinance. 

	 The first line of defence lies with the respective microfinance departments and units, 
which are responsible for ensuring that compliance risks are identified, understood and 
reported to the decision-making bodies of the microfinance and to Compliance Officer. 

	 The second line of defence lies with Compliance Officer, which assesses and monitors 
the compliance and integrity risks and coordinates its control activities with the Risk 
Management Unit. 

	 Internal Audit is the third line of defence.
	 The Compliance function assists the microfinance in identifying, assessing, monitoring 

and reporting on compliance risks in matters relating to the institution, its operations and 
the personal conduct of staff members. The Chief Compliance Officer reports to the CEO.

	 Strategic Risk
	 Strategic risk is the risk in achieving microfinance’s strategic objectives, both from internal 

and external events and scenarios which prevent from achieving strategic objectives.
	 Strategic Risk can be further defined as:

•	 Exposure to loss resulting from a strategy that runs out to be inappropriate.
•	 Risk associated with future plans and strategies, including plans for entering new 

services, expanding existing services through enhancements and merger, enhancing 
infrastructures etc.

	 Current and prospective impact of strategic decisions made by management arising 
from adverse business decisions, improper implementation of decisions or lack of 
responsiveness to industry change etc.

	 Periodic (yearly) review of the strategy is being done by Management Committee and 
reported to BOD regarding: status of the strategic objective’s achievement as decided, 
execution status whether the right talent and infrastructures support the achievement of 
the objective or about unintended consequences of the strategy, if any for their timely 
corrections/updates if found to be necessary.

	 Interest Rate Risk
	 Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to 

interest rate adjustment within a specified period. Interest rate risk is usually assessed from 
two common perspectives. Earnings perspective, which focuses on the impact of variation 
in interest rate on accruals or reported earnings, and economic value perspective, which 
reflects the impact of fluctuation in the interest rates on economic value of a financial 
institution.
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	 The microfinance measures and manages interest rate risk by estimating the sensitivity 
of the economic value of its balance sheet to an interest rate shock. The sensitivity is 
measured by means of interest rates on the present value of interest-bearing assets and 
liabilities.

	 AML/CFT Risk
	 AML/CFT risk is related with providing financial services to money launders and terrorists 

for channelling of money derived from crime or aimed at funding terrorism.
	 The strictness of the provisions made in laws and directives reflect the seriousness of 

this issue; non-compliance of which may cause significant reputational risk as well as 
may result in adverse consequences. Microfinance have been closely monitoring the 
AML/CFT policies, procedures, guidelines and practices of Banks & Financial Institutions 
(BFIs).

	 A separate AML/CFT Unit is established under direct supervision and control of Compliance 
Officer which looks after the effective implementation and compliance of AML/CFT related 
prevailing Acts, Rules and Directives.

5.2 Capital Management
i. Qualitative disclosures
	 The microfinance has maintained the capital adequacy as per Capital adequacy framework, 

2007 (Updated July 2008) as required by Nepal Rastra Bank. The main objective of this 
framework is to develop a safe and sound financial system by way of sufficient amount 
of qualitative capital and risk management practices. The total equity of the microfinance 
comprises of paid up capital, statutory reserves and other reserves. The microfinance 
does not have any other complex or hybrid capital instruments. Capital adequacy ratio as 
on Ashad end 2080 is 11.34% and 10.19% on core capital and capital fund respectively.

	 Assessment of capital adequacy of microfinance is done on regular basis taking into 
considerations the exposure of microfinance. Also, the analysis of possible impact on 
capital adequacy is being done on regular basis taking into consideration the future 
impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of microfinance and impact in capital 
due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management 
Committee and is summarized in board. Regular monitoring of nature of business is being 
done so that unexpected negative impact could not take place in capital adequacy of 
microfinance. Reporting to regulatory body is being done as prescribed by compliance 
department. 

	 The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process 
which requires board and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and 
internal control reviews at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital 
requirement with the true risk profile of the microfinance and thus ensure long-term safety 
and soundness of the microfinance. The key components of an effective ICAAP are 
discussed below.
a.	 Board and senior management oversight
	 Board and senior management oversight microfinance management is responsible 

for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by the microfinance and 
how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring that 
the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate 
with the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the 
foundation for an effective assessment of the adequacy of a microfinance’s capital 
position.
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	 The board of directors of the microfinance are responsible for setting the microfinance’s 
tolerance for risks. The board also ensures that management establishes a mechanism 
for assessing various risks; develops a system to relate these risks to the microfinance’s 
capital level and sets up a method for monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is 
equally important that the board instils strong internal controls and thereby an effective 
control environment through adoption of written policies and procedures and ensures that 
the policies and procedures are effectively communicated throughout the Microfinance.

b.	 Sound Capital Assessment
	 Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to 

be able to make a sound capital assessment the Microfinance should, at minimum, have 
the following: 
•	 Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the microfinance identifies, 

measures, and reports all material risks; 
•	 A process that relates capital to the level of risk; 
•	 A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of 

the microfinance’s strategic focus and business plan; and 
•	 A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall 

management process. 
c.	 Comprehensive assessment of risk
	 All material risks faced by the microfinance should be addressed in the capital assessment 

process. Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. 
however, microfinance should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable 
certainties. In order to make a comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, 
at minimum, address the following forms of risk.
1.	 Credit Risk
2.	 Credit Concentration Risk
3.	 Operational Risk
4.	 Market Risk
5.	 Liquidity Risk

d.	 Monitoring and reporting 
	 The microfinance has established an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk 

exposures and assessing how the microfinance’s changing risk profile affects the need 
for capital. The microfinance’s senior management or board of directors, on a regular 
basis, receive reports on the microfinance’s risk profile and capital needs. These reports 
allow senior management to: 
•	 Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels; 
•	 Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital 

assessment measurement system; 
•	 Determine that the microfinance holds sufficient capital against the various risks and 

is in compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and 
•	 Assess its future capital requirements based on the microfinance’s reported risk 

profile and make necessary adjustments to the microfinance’s strategic plan 
accordingly. 

e.	 Internal Control Review
	 The microfinance’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital 

assessment process. Effective control of the capital assessment process includes 
an independent review and, where appropriate, the involvement of internal or 
external audits. The microfinance’s board of directors has a responsibility to ensure 
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that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks, develops a 
system to relate risk to the microfinance’s capital level, and establishes a method 
for monitoring compliance with internal policies. The board should regularly verify 
whether its system of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered and 
prudent conduct of business. The microfinance should conduct periodic reviews of 
its risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. 
Key areas that should be reviewed include: 

•	 Appropriateness of the Microfinance’s capital assessment process given the nature, 
scope and complexity of its activities; 

•	 Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations; 
•	 Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the Microfinance’s assessment process; 
•	 Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and 
•	 Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.  
	
	 i. Risk Weighted Assets										        
A.	 On-Balance-sheet Items

S.N. Description 
Risk 

Weight 
(%)

31 Ashad 2080 "Restated 
32 Ashad 2079"

Book Value RWA Book Value RWA
1 Cash Balance 0  38,274,264  -    18,870,891  -   
2 Gold (Tradable) 0  -    -   
3 NRB Balance 0  32,282  -    9,384,173  -   
4 Investment to Govt. Bond 0  -    -   
5 Investment to NRB Bond 0  -    -   
6 Loan against Own FD 0  -    -   
7 Loan against Govt. Bond 0  -    -   

8 Accrued interests on Govt. 
bond 0  -    -   

9
Balance on domestic 
banks and financial insti-
tutions

20  661,374,851  132,274,970  537,809,668  107,561,934 

10 Money at call 20  -    -    -    -   
11 Inter-bank lending 20  -    -   

12 Investment on shares/de-
bentures/bonds 100  2,509,914  2,509,914  2,313,276  2,313,276 

13 Other investments 100  -    -    -    -   

14 Loans & advances, bills 
purchase/discount 100  17,263,765,993  17,263,765,993  11,187,276,882  11,187,276,882 

15 Fixed assets 100  296,483,035  296,483,035  41,196,042  41,196,042 
16 Other assets 100  18,250,802  18,250,802  17,692,333  17,692,333 

17
Net interest receivables 
(Total IR - 8 - Interest 
supsense)

100  -    -   

Total On-Balance-sheet 
Items (A)  18,280,691,141  17,713,284,714  11,814,543,265  11,356,040,466 
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B. Off-Balance-sheet Items

S.N. Description 
Weight 

(%)
31 Ashad 2080

"Restated 
32 Ashad 2079"

Amount RWA Amount RWA
1 Financial and other guarantee 100  -    -   
2 Irrevocable loan commitment 100  -    -   
3 Possible liabilities for income tax 100 13,983,135  13,983,135  7,877,240  7,877,240 

4
All types of possible liabilities 
including acceptance

100  -    -   

5 Unpaid guarantee claims 200  -    -   

6
Claimed but not accepted  
liabilities

200  -    -   

Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) 13,983,135  13,983,135  7,877,240  7,877,240 

C.
Amount relating to Operating Risk 
(2% of Total Assets)

 17,815,871,967  356,317,439 11,494,211,638  229,884,233 

Total Risk Weighted Assets 
(A+B+C) 

 18,083,585,288  11,593,801,939 

ii. Quantitative disclosures	
A. Core Capital	
S.N. Particulars Amount Amount
1. Paid up Equity Share Capital  1,084,206,220  586,674,973 
2 Irredeemable Preference Share  -    -   
3 Share Premium  -    -   
4 Proposed Bonus Equity Shares  -    -   
3 Statutory Reserve Fund  454,584,510  296,601,955 
4 Retained Earning  303,948,154  343,302,975 
5 Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss)  -    -   
6 Capital Redemption Reserve  -    -   
7 Capital Adjustment Reserve  -    -   

Dividend Equalization Reserves  -    -   
8 Calls in Advance  -    -   
9 Other Free Reserve  -    -   

Less:
Goodwill  -    -   
Deferred Tax Assets  -    -   
Investment in shares and securities in excess of limits  -    -   
Investment in securities of the corporate bodies having 
own financial interests

 -    -   

Fictitious assets  -    -   
Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized  -    -   
Credit and facilities made available to persons and groups 
prohibited by the prevailing laws

 -    -   

Other Deductions  -    -   
Total Core Capital (A)  1,842,738,884  1,226,579,903 

B. Supplementary Capital	
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S.N. Particulars Amount
1. General loan loss provision  90,849,512  45,856,346 
2 Additional loan loss provision  117,183,846  142,867,535 
3 Hybrid capital instruments  -    -   
4 Unsecured Subordinated term loan  -    -   
5 Asset Revaluation Reserve  -    -   
6 Investment Adjustment Reserve  -    -   
Total Supplementary Capital (B)  208,033,357  188,723,881 

			 
C. Total Capital Fund (A+B)		  2,050,772,242 	  1,415,303,784 		
D. Minimum Capital to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets			 
Capital Fund maintained ( in %) 11.34% 12.21%
Core Capital maintained (in %) 10.19% 10.58%
Capital Fund surplus/deficit by 8% 3.34% 4.21%
Core Capital surplus/deficit by 4% 6.19% 6.58%

5.3 Classification of Financial assets & financial liabilities

Financial Assets Amortized Cost

Fair value 
through other 
comprehen-
sive income

Fair value 
through 
profit or loss

 Total 

Cash in hand  38,274,264  -    -    38,274,264 
Balances with B/FIs  575,219,825  -    -    575,219,825 
Money at call and short notice  -    -    -    -   
Interbank placement  -    -    -    -   
Balance at NRB  -    -    -    -   
Derivative financial instrument  -    -    -    -   
Loans & Advances  17,263,765,993  -    -    17,263,765,993 
Government bonds  -    -    -    -   
Government treasury bills  -    -    -    -   
Equity investments  -    2,509,914  -   
Other assets  -    -    -    -   
Total Financial Assets  17,877,260,082  2,509,914  -    17,877,260,082 
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Financial Liabilities Amortized Cost

Fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)

 Total 
 Held for 
trading 

Designated 
at FVTPL

Deposits from customers  4,523,949,753  -    -    4,523,949,753 
Due to Banks & Financial 
Institutions  -    -    -    -   

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks  -    -    -    -   
Debt Securities  -    -    -    -   
Borrowing  9,871,371,063  -    -    9,871,371,063 
Employee related liabilities  144,690,652  -    -    144,690,652 
Bills payable  -    -    -    -   
Creditors and accruals  588,107  -    -    588,107 
Interest payable on deposit  471,867,499  -    -    471,867,499 
Interest payable on borrowing  -    -    -    -   
Unpaid Dividend  16,690,872  -    -    16,690,872 
Liabilities under Lease (Rental 
Lease)  4,117,831  -    -    4,117,831 

Other liabilities  137,029,876  -    -    137,029,876 
Total Financial Liabilities  15,170,305,651  -    -    15,170,305,651 

5.4 	Operating Segment Information FY 2079-80	
	 1. General information									       
	 a) An operating segment is a component of an entity:							     

	

	 that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including 
revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity),			 
					   

	 whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make 
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which 
discrete financial information is available.								      
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(b) Profit or loss							     
Total profit or loss for reportable segments  740,288,763 

Other profit or loss  -   
Elimination of intersegment profits  -   
Unallocated amounts:  (429,705,612)
Profit before income tax  310,583,151 

									       

(c) Assets								      
Total assets for reportable segments  17,592,200,193 
Other assets  -   
Unallocated amounts  223,671,777 
Entity’s assets  17,815,871,969 

(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments  15,116,435,206 
Other liabilities  -   
Unallocated liabilities  2,699,468,159 
Entity’s liabilities  17,815,903,365 

						    

5.	 Information about geographical areas							     
	 Revenue from following geographical areas							     

(a)  Domestic  1,756,163,976 
Province 1  415,343,177 
Province 2  690,464,151 
Province 3  207,684,204 
Province 4  79,976,507 
Province 5  188,682,691 
Province 6  89,752,277 
Province 7  84,260,969 

(b) Foreign  -   
Total  1,756,163,976 

6.	 Information about major customers								      
	 Revenue from a single external customer is less than 10 percent of microfinance’s total revenue.

5.5 	 Share options and share based payment				  
	 The microfinance does not have any share option and share based payment.			 

				  

5.6 	 Contingent liabilities and commitment				  
	 "Contingent Liabilities:
	 Where the microfinance undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees 

issued for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are 
included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities"

				  

	 "Commitments: 
Where the microfinance has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf 
of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not 
and the entity has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in 
these financial statement as commitments"				  

	 Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.26			 
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5.7 	 Related parties disclosures				  
	 Following has been identified as Related Parties for Microfinance under NAS 24 Related Parties:	

a. Directors				  
b. Key Management Personnel of the Microfinance				  

	 c. Relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Current Year Previous Year
Directors Directors
Mr Rabin Sijapati Mr Keshab Prasad Acharya
Mr Keshab Prasad Acharya Mr Rabin Sijapati
Mr Kshitij Khadka Mr Kshitij Khadka
Mr Tirtha Raj Dhakal Mr Bhaskar Narasingha Joshi
Mr Pradit Kumar Regmi Mr Narendra Prasad Chatkuli
Mr Narendra Prasad Chatkuli Mr Ram Kumar Timalsina

		
	 Key Managerial Personnel				  

Current Year Previous Year
Mr Ram Bahadur Yadav Mr Ram Bahadur Yadav
Mr Debendra Bahadur Basnet Mr Bijaya Kumar Ghimire
Mr Bijaya Kumar Ghimire Ms Sarita Shrestha
Ms Sarita Shrestha Mr Kashiram Bhattarai
Mr Ghanashyam Thapa Mr Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Mr Kashiram Bhattarai Mr Kamal Kafle
Mr Bhojraj Phuyal Mr Ravindra Kumar Khawas
Mr Shyam Bahadur Gurung Mr Santosh Pandey
Mr Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Mr Kamal Kumar Kafle
Mr Tara Prasad Dhungana
Mr. Santosh Pandey

		
	 Transaction during the Year		

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Directors
Directors Sitting Fees  1,546,000  1,159,000 
Other directors' expenses (if any)  391,237  645,964 
Total  1,937,237  1,804,964 
Key Management Personnel
Remuneration and Benefit Paid  17,660,406  15,160,402 
Post-Retirement Benefits  5,395,833  4,305,841 
Other Long-term Benefits
Borrowing during the year  -    -   
Interest on Borrowing  -    -   
Interest on account balances  -    -   
Other transactions benefits if any  -    -   
Total  23,056,239  19,466,243 
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	 Reporting Date Balances				  
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Directors Deposits  -    -   
KMP Deposits  -    -   
Borrowings  -    -   
Other Receivable payables if any  -    -   
Total  -    -   

				  
5.8 	 Merger and acquisition				  
	 National Microfinance has merged with Summit Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited on Ashad 30, 

2080 and Mahila Laghubitiya Bittiya Sanstha Limited on Ashad 30, 2078 			 

5.9 	 Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities				  
	 Not Applicable								      

5.10 	Events after reporting date				  
	 "Microfinance monitors and assess events that may have potential impact to qualify as 

adjusting and / or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period.  All adjusting 
events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material 
events are discloses in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable. 
There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 31 Ashad 2080 till the signing of 
this financial statement."								      

5.11	  Proposed Dividend				  
	 The Board has recommended 7.5 % bonus share and 7.5 % cash dividend (including tax on bonus 

share and cash dividend) of the existing paid up capital for the reported Fiscal Year 2079/80.  
The proposed dividend shall be recognized in the equity in the period in which they are 
paid.	

	 Disclosure of effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs		

5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity		
Particulars   Note  As at 32.03.2079  As at 01.04.2078 

Total equity under Previous GAAP  1,269,700,371  934,873,024 
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances  -   
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan  5,388,503 
Lease accounting  4,500,837 
Measurement of investment securities measured at fair value  (815,955)  (870,769.14)
Dividend Income from Associates
Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortisation of debt securities issued
Deferred tax  (1,475,991)  (3,812,080)
Interest expense
Depreciation & Amortisation
Interest income  111,172,795  64,873,184 
Provision for Employee benefits (Gratuity)  (1,904,200)  10,217,274 
Provision for Employee benefits (Leave)  5,429,466  1,618,890 
Proposed Cash Dividend  20,952,678 
Employee Bonus  (4,908,764)
Total Adjustment to equity  117,386,692  92,979,176 
Total Equity under NFRSs  1,387,087,063  1,027,852,200 
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5.11.2. Reconciliation of profit or loss			 

Particulars  Note  For 2078-79 
Previous GAAP  335,076,033 
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income  46,299,612 
Impairment of loan and advances
Lease expense  730,950 
Share issue expenes directly charged to equity-Tax Impcat
Interest expense  (376,989)
Depreciation & Amortisation  (591,169)
Provision for Leave  5,429,466 
Provision for Gratuity  (1,904,200)
Others
Deferred Tax  (1,475,991)
Amortisation of Staff Advance  (500,035)
Provision for Investment Reserve
Provision for Income Tax
Employee Bonus  (4,908,764)
Total Adjustment to profit or loss  42,702,881 
Profit or loss under NFRSs  377,778,914 
Other Comprehensive Income  2,657,313 
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs  380,436,227 

			 
Note			 
1) Lease liability calculated as per NFRS 16.			 
2) Deferred Tax effect of all adjustment			 
3) Accrued Interest Receivable booked on accrual basis			 
4) Liability for leave and gratuity booked as per actuarial valuation.			
5) Proposed cash dividend.			 
6) Amortization of staff advance.	
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5.11.4. 	Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income								     
		  For the year ended (the latest period presented under previous GAAP)		

Particulars Explanatory  
Notes

Previous 
GAAP

Effect of 
Transition 
to NFRSs

Amount as per 
NFRSs

Interest Income 1,580,106,747  46,299,612 1,626,406,358 
Interest Expense  (769,170,770)  (376,989)  (769,547,759)
Net interest income  810,935,977  45,922,623  856,858,600 
Fee and Commission Income  110,898,354  -    110,898,354 
Fee and Commission Expense  -    -    -   
Net fee and Commission income  110,898,354  -    110,898,354 
Net interest fee and commission income  921,834,331  45,922,623  967,756,954 
Net Trading Income  -    -    -   
Other Operating Income  -    -   
Total operating income  921,834,331  45,922,623  967,756,954 
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans 
and other losses  47,868,647  -    47,868,647 

Net Operating income  873,965,685  45,922,623  919,888,307 
Operating expense

Personnel Expense  (265,794,827)  
(1,883,533)  (267,678,359)

Other Operating Expenses  (119,316,696)  730,950  (118,585,746)
Depreciation and Amortization  (9,633,178)  (591,169)  (10,224,347)
Operating Profit  479,220,983  44,178,872  523,399,855 
Non operating income  -    -    -   
Non operating expense  -    -    -   
Profit before income tax  479,220,983  44,178,872  523,399,855 
Income tax expense  144,144,950  1,475,991  145,620,941 
Current tax  146,506,273  -    146,506,273 
Deferred tax income/(Expense)  (2,361,323)  1,475,991  (885,332)
Profit for the Year  335,076,033  42,702,881  377,778,914 
Other Comprehensive Income  -    2,657,313 
Total Comprehensive Income  335,076,033  42,702,881  380,436,227 

				  
Note				  
1) 	 Accrued interest on loans booked on accrual basis and present value of staff loan reclassified to 

loans and advances to customers.				  
2) 	 Interest expense on lease liability.				  
3) 	 Provision expenses for gratuity and leave booked as per actuarial valuation.			 
4) 	 Lease expense adjusted as per NFRS 16.				  
5) 	 Depreciation on Right on Use Asset.				  
6) 	 Deferred Tax effect of all adjustment		
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5.11.5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows		

Particulars Explanato-
ry Notes

For the year ended (the latest period presented 
under previous GAAP)

Previous GAAP
Effect of 
Transition to 
NFRSs

Amount as per 
NFRSs

Net cash flows from operating 
activities 1  (414,225,861)  (221,780,518)  (192,445,343)

Net cash flows from investing 
activities  (6,941,377)  -    (6,941,377)

Net cash flows from financing 
activities 1  (21,201,364)  (248,686)  (20,952,678)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalent  (442,368,602)  (222,029,205)  (220,339,398)

Cash and cash equivalent at the 
beginnig of the period  786,404,130  -    786,404,130 

Cash and cash equivalent at the 
end of the period  344,035,528  (222,029,205)  566,064,732 

				  
Note				  
1) Placement with bank and financial institutions classified under cash & Cash Equivalent		
2) Payment for CSR activities transffered under operating activities.
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6.	 Related party disclosure
	 The microfinance has carried out transactions in ordinary course of business on an arm's length 

basis at commercial rates with the parties as per Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS 24- Related 
Party Disclosure), except for the transactions that key managerial personnel have availed under 
schemes uniformly applicable to all the staffs at concessionary rates.

6.1	 Entity with significant influence over the Microfinance
	 Followings have been identified as related parties for microfinance under NAS 24 Related Party  

Disclosure:

(a) Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited, 	 (b) Kumari Bank Limited
(c) Prime Commercial Bank Limited	 (d) Garima Bikas Bank Limited
(e) Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited 	 (f) Gurkhas Finance Limited
(g) Siddhartha Bank Limited	 (h) Himalayan Bank Limited 
(i) Nabil Bank Limited

6.2	 Parents and ultimate controlling parties
	 The microfinance doesn’t have an identifiable parent of its own.

7.	 Transaction with Key Managerial Personnel.
	 As per NAS-24 Related Party Disclosure, key managerial personnel are defined as those people 

having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
entity.

	 Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the microfinance are considered as key 
managerial personnel of the microfinance.

	 Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel & Board of Directors

SN Name Post Amount (NPR)
1  Mr Keshab Prasad Acharya  Chairman 170,000.00
2  Mr Rabin Sijapati  Director 336,000.00
3  Mr Bhaskar Narsingh Joshi  Director 272,000.00
4  Mr Kshitij Khadka  Director 256,000.00
5  Mr Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli  Director 280,000.00
6  Mr Ram Kumar Timalsina  Director 208,000.00
7  Ms Jamuna Shrestha  Director 24,000.00

   Total   1,546,000.00

 	 Communication Expenses

SN Name Post Amount (NPR)
1 Mr Keshab Prasad Acharya Chairman 36,000.00
2 Mr Rabin Sijapati Director 36,000.00
3 Mr Bhaskar Narsingh Joshi Director 36,000.00
4 Mr Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli Director 36,000.00
5 Mr Ram Kumar Timalsina Director 36,000.00
6 Mr Kshit Khadka Director 36,000.00
7 Ms Jamuna Shrestha Director 6,000.00
  Total   222,000.00
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	 Compensation to the Chief Executive Officer:

Particulars Amount  (NPR)
Short Term Benefits 4,920,000.00
Festival Allowance 335,000.00
Employee Bonus 1,437,892.43
Other Benefits 564,431.58
Total 7,257,324.01

	 In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like Vehicles Facilities, 
Telephone, Newspaper Allowance, Dress Allowance, Accidental Insurance, Travelling Allowance 
and Leave encashment facilities as per the approved employee facilities of the Microfinance to 
the Chief Executive Officer.

8.	 Proposed Dividend (Cash Dividend & Bonus Shares)
	 The Board has recommended 7.5 % bonus share and 7.5 % cash dividend (including tax on bonus 

share and cash dividend) of the existing paid up capital for the reported Fiscal Year 2079/80. The 
proposed dividend shall be recognized in the equity in the period in which they are paid.

9.	 Issue, Purchase, and Repayment of debt and equity Securities
	 No any such activities were reported during the year-end review.

10.	 Effect of changes in the composition of the entity during the period including Merger & Acquisition
	 The microfinance has acquired erstwhile Mahila Sahayatra Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 

(Mahila) on 30 Ashad 2078. Further, after acquisition of Mahila, microfinance has acquired/
merged with Summit Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (Summit) on 30 Ashad 2080 and started 
its joint operation for members from thereon.

	 Goodwill is created at the time of acquisition of Summit since purchase consideration given on 
acquisition exceeds the net assets taken over from the Summit which has been reported under 
Note 4.12 of Financial Statement giving corresponding effect on other component of equity (due 
to Merger) under note 4.25 as a part of total reserve/equity.

	 Further, goodwill is reported in the Financial Statement without affecting the Statement of Profit 
or Loss/Retained Earning, rather reported separately creating special reserve (other component 
of equity) in Statement of Change in Equity, hence same has not been transferred to regulatory 
reserve from Retained Earning while calculating distributable profit.  

11.	 Refund of Service Charges and Additional Provision
	 Service charges amounting to NPR 50,999,571.67 (NPR 34,798,086.00 & NPR 16,201,485.67 

relating to National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited & Summit Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
respectively) which has been adjusted in statement of Profit or Loss of National Laghubitta Bittiya 
Sanstha Limited prepared after acquisition/merger of Summit Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited.

 
	 Further, after acquisition/merger, additional loan loss provision for both the institutions on account 

of multi-financing, ever greening and restructured loan amounting to NPR 217,925,964 (NPR 
77,399,649 & 140,526,315 relating to National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited & Summit 
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited respectively) making total cumulative loan loss provision of 
NPR 510,333,446.02 has been provided as on reporting date.

 
	 However, for the purpose for computation of income tax provision, service charge refund and 

additional Loan Loss provision has been considered separately for the entity to which it pertains 
instead of giving cumulative effect in the tax computation of National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha 
Limited after acquisition/merger.



91 bzf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷*)

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
NATIONAL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Detailed breakdown of Loan Loss Provision after incorporating the additional LLP from NRB has been 
tabulated below.

Particulars
National
 LBSL

Summit LBSL Total

Existing Closing LLP Before NRB Additional (FY 2079-80) 181,952,310 110,455,172 292,407,483
Contingency by Management (additional LLP by 
management)

170,909,017 38,117,462 209,026,479

Total Closing LLP (Before adjustment) (FY 2079-80) 352,861,327 148,572,634 501,433,961
Opening LLP (FY 2078-79) 353,010,377 98,591,526 451,601,904
LLP Charged to SPL (before Adjustment) (149,050) 49,981,108 49,832,057
Additional LLP by NRB:
Ever greening 16,511,965 84,230,153 100,742,118
Multifinancing 60,793,935 31,790,717 92,584,652
Restructured Loan 93,749 24,505,444 24,599,194
Total Additional LLP by  NRB 77,399,649 140,526,315 217,925,964
Total Closing LLP after adjustment 259,351,959 250,981,487 510,333,446
LLP  charged for the purpose of income tax compu-
tation after adjustment

(93,658,418) 152,389,960 58,731,542

Final LLP  charged to SPL after adjustment as per NRB 8,750,434 49,981,108 58,731,542

As per our report of even date

Rabin Sijapati
Chairperson

Keshav Prasad Acharya
Director

Kshitij Khadka
Director

   Tirtha Raj Dhakal 
Director

Pradit Kumar Regmi
Director

Narendra Prasad Chhatkuli
Director

Ram Bahadur Yadav
Chief Executive Officer

  Ram Chandra Rupakheti
Head of Finance

  CA. Prahlad Gautam
 Partner

Kuber N. Bhattarai & Co.
Chartered Accountants

 Date: 5 Feb 2024 
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cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) sf] ljQLo ljj/0fx? k|sflzt ug{ :jLs[t k|bfg ul/Psf]  
g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] kqsf] k|ltpQ/ M

-s_ 	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 Ohfhtkqk|fKt æ3Æ ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ hf/L  
ul/Psf] PsLs[t lgb]{zg, @)&( sf] lgb]{zg g+=#÷)&( sf] a'+bf g+= @ -u_ df ePsf] Joj:yf 
adf]lhd ;d"xdf cfj¢ ePsf] ;b:onfO{ Ps} cjlwdf ;d"x shf{ jf lwtf] shf{dWo] s'g} Ps shf{ 
dfq k|jfx ug]{ u/LPsf] 5 .

-v_ 	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 Ohfhtkqk|fKt æ3Æ ju{sf] ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] PsLs[t lgb]{zg, 
@)&( sf] lgb]{zg g+=!(÷)&( sf] a'+bf g+= @ -v_ df ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd g} ;]jf z'Ns lng] 
Aoj:yf u/LPsf] 5 .

-u_ 	 ;+:yfn] hf]lvd Joj:yfkgnfO{ Go"lgs/0f ug{ss nflu ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 Disaster Recovery 
Plan ⁄Business Continuity Plan l:js[t u/fO{ sfof{Gjogdf NofO ;s]sf] 5 .

-3_ 	 ;fljs ;dL6 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8n] Further Public Offering (FPO) hf/L ug{ afFsL 
/x]s} cj:yfdf ;fljs g]zgn dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8;Fu Ps cfk;df 
ufEg]÷ufleg] -dh{/_ sfo{ ;DkGg eO{ ldlt @)*) cfiff9 #) ut]af6 g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yf lnld6]8sf] gfdaf6 PsLs[t sf/f]jf/ z'ef/De ul/Psf]df ;+:yfn] a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf 
;DaGwL P]g,@)&# kl/R5]b # sf] bkmf ( df ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd x'g] u/L ;j{;fwf/0fnfO{ z]o/ 
hf/L u/L r'Qmf kF"hLsf] sDtLdf #) k|ltzt ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/ sfod ug{sf nflu ;+:yfsf] ldlt 
@)*)÷!@÷!^ df ;DkGg x'g] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k|:tfj ul/;lsPsf] 5 .

-ª_ 	 o; ;+:yfn] a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g,@)&# sf] bkmf !$ sf] pkbkmf # adf]lhd 
;+:yfdf ldlt @)*)÷!)÷@$ df :jtGq ;~rfns lgo'Qm u/L] g]kfn /fi6« a}+sdf ;d]t hfgsf/L  
u/fO;lsPsf] 5 .

-r_ 	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 Ohfhtkqk|fKt æ3Æ ju{sf] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] PsLs[t 
lgb]{zg,@)&( sf] lgb]{zg g+=!)÷)&( sf] a'+bf g+= ^ adf]lhd Ohfhtkqk|fKt s'g} Ps a}+s tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks z]o/df nufgL ubf{ r'Qmf k'FhLsf] a9Ldf @% k|ltzt / cGo a}s tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfx?df r'Qmf k'FhLsf] !) k|ltzt dfq ;+:yfks z]o/df nufgL ug{ ;lsg] Joj:yf 
/x]sf]n] plNnlvt ;LdfeGbf a9L z]o/wf/0f ug]{ ;+:yfks z]o/wgL /x]÷g/x]sf] PsLg u/L  
;f] ;LdfeGbf a9L ePdf pQm z]o/wgLn] cfˆgf] z]o/ pk/f]Qm ;Ldfleq gNofP;Dd k|:tfljt 
gub nfef+z tyf af]gz z]o/ ljt/0f /f]Ssf /fVg] Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 .

-5_ 	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 Ohfhtkqk|fKt æ3Æ ju{sf] ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] PsLs[t 
lgb]{zg,@)&( sf] lgb]{zg g+=^÷)&( sf] a'+bf g+= ^-$_ adf]lhd hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltn]  
lgliqmo shf{ 36fpg] tkm{  e"ldsf v]Nb} cfPsf]df of] ;ldltnfO{ yk ;lqmo / k|efjsf/L agfOPsf] 
5 .
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-h_ 	 ;fljs g]zgn dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= / ;dL6 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=  
Ps cfk;df ufEg]÷ufleg] -dh{/_ sfo{ ;DkGg eO{ ldlt @)*) cfiff9 #) ut]af6 g]zgn n3'ljQ 
ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] gfdaf6 PsLs[t sf/f]jf/ z'ef/De u/L % hgf ;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 / ! 
hgf ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 ;~rfns  /xg]  Joj:yf ldnfOPsf]df ca ;+:yfsf] lgodfjnLsf] lgod 
#! -s_ df ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd ;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 dgf]lgt÷lgjf{lrt $ hgf / ;j{;fwf/0f 
;d"xaf6 dgf]lgt÷lgjf{lrt @ hgf ;~rfns x'g] u/L ;+:yfsf] ldlt @)*)÷!@÷!^ df ;DkGg 
x'g] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k|:tfj u/L;lsPsf] 5 eg] :jtGq ;~rfns ldlt @)*)÷!)÷@$ 
df lgo'Qm ul/;lsPsf] 5 . 

-em_ 	 ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s / afXo n]vfk/LIfs tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] :ynut lg/LIf0f / u}x| :ynut 
;'kl/j]If0f k|ltj]bgn] cf}NofPsf s}lkmotx? k'gM gbf]xf]l/g] u/L ;'wf/ ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfOPsf]  
5 .
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;fwf/0f ;efdf dtbfg ug{ cfk\mgf] k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ 

lgo'Qm ug{] lgj]bg

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt,

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 

ag]kf !), sfe|]knf~rf]s .

                    ljifoM k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .

===================== lhNnf ===================================== d=g=kf=÷pk d=g=kf÷g=kf=÷uf=kf=, j8f g+===== 

a:g] d÷xfdL   ================================ ======================= n] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] 

;Dat\ @)*)÷!@÷!^ ut] z'qmjf/sf lbg x'g] bzf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf d÷xfdL :jod\ pkl:yt eO{ 

5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pQm ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 efu lng tyf dtbfg 

ug{sf nflu =========================== lhNnf ======================= ====================== d=g=kf=÷ pk–d=g=kf 

÷g=kf= ÷uf=kf=j8f g+= === a:g] >L ========================================== ==========  ======================== nfO{ 

d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷ k7fPsf 5f}+ .

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] JolQmM	 lgj]bsM				  

x:tfIf/sf] gd"gfM	 b:tvt M

gfd M 	 gfd M 

7]ufgf M	 7]ufgf M

lxtu|fxL vftf g+= M                   	 lxtu|fxL vftf g+= M

                              	 z]o/ lsQf ;+Vof M
ldlt M

b|i^Ao M of] lgj]bg ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g' eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{nodf  
k]z ul/;Sg' kg]{5 . PseGbf a9L k|ltlglwsf] gfd pNn]v u/]df k|ltlglw   -k|f]S;L_ kmf/d /2 ul/g] 5 .
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k|aGwkqdf ;+zf]wgsf] k|:tfj
ljz]if k|:tfj;+u ;DalGwt k|jGwkqdf ;+zf]wg ug{ k|:tfljt bkmfsf] ljj/0f

k|jGwkqsf] 
;DalGwt bkmf

xfnsf] Aoj:yf k|:tfljt ;+zf]wgsf] Aoj:yf ;+zf]wg ug{'kg]{ sf/0f

bkmf @  -!_ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{  
-s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{no afudtL k|b]z  
sfe]|knf~rf]s lhNnf, ag]kf  
gu/kflnsf j8f g+= !) df /xg] 
5 .

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{          
-s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{no afudtL  
k|b]z sf7df8f}+ lhNnf 
a'9flgns07 gu/kflnsf j8f 
g+= * df /xg] 5 .

PsLs[t lgb]{zg 
g+=!&÷@)&( sf] $-ª_ -*_ 
df ePsf] Aoj:yf cg'?ksf 
dfkb08x? k"/f eO;s]sf]n] 
;+:yfsf] /lhi68{        
-s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{no sf7df8f}+ 
pkTosf leq :yfgfGt/0f 
ug{ dgfl;j b]lvPsf] .

bkmf ^ -v_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L kF'hL 
?=!,!$,^%,@@,%@#.%#       -cIf/]kL  
Ps cj{ rf}w  s/f]8 k};¶L 
nfv afO; xhf/ kfFr ;o  
t]O; k};f lqkGg dfq_ x'g]5  . 
;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|ltz]o/ ?=!)) 
b/sf !,!$,^%,@@%=@#      
-Ps s/f]8 rf}w nfv k};¶L xhf/ 
b'O{ ;o kRrL; bzdnj bzdnj 
b'O{ tLg_ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL  
? = ! , @ # , @ % , ! ! , & ! @ . * )         
-cIf/]kL Ps ca{ t]O{; s/f]8 
kRrL;  nfv P3f/ xhf/ ;ft 
;o afx|  k};f  cf7 z'Go dfq_ 
x'g]5 . ;f] k'FhLnfO k|ltz]o/ 
?=!)) b/sf !,@#,@%,!!&=!@* 
-Ps s/f]8 t]O; nfv kRrL;  
xhf/ Ps ;o ;q bzdnj Ps 
b'O{ cf7_ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL 
P]g, @)&# sf] kl/R5]b # sf] 
bkmf ( df ePsf] Aoj:yf 
adf]lhd ;j{;fwf/0fnfO{  
z]o/ hf/L u/L r'Qmf k'FhLsf] 
#) k|ltzt ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/ 
sfod ug'{kg]{ ePsf]n] .            

bkmf ^ -u_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL 
?==!,)*,$@,)^,@!(.%#      -cIf/]kLM  
Ps cj{ cf7 s/f]8 aofnL; nfv 
5 xhf/ b'O{;o pGgfO; k};f 
lqkGg dfq_ x'g]5  .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL       
? = ! , ! ^ , % % , @ ! , ^ * % . ( (                 
-cIf/]kL Ps ca{ ;f]x| s/f]8 
krkGg nfv PSsfO; xhf/ 5 
;o krf;L k};f pgfG;o dfq_ 
x'g]5  .

xfnsf] r'Qmf k'FhLdf &=% 
k|ltztsf] b/n]  af]gz z]o/ 
ljt/0f ubf{ k'FhL ;+/rgfdf 
kl/jt{t x'g] ePsf]n] ;f]xL 
adf]lhd r'Qmf k'FhL a[l4 ug{ 
cfjZos ePsf]n] .
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lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wgsf] k|:tfj
      

  ljz]if k|:tfj;+u ;DjlGwt lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg ug{ k|:tfljt lgodsf] ljj/0f

lgodfjnLsf] ;DjlGwt  lgod xfnsf]] Joj:yf k|:tfljt ;+zf]wg Joj:yf ;+zf]wg ug'{ kg]{ sf/0f

lgod  @   o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ 
-s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{no afudtL 
k|b]z sfe]|knf~rf]s lhNnf, 
ag]kf gu/kflnsf j8f  
g+= !) df /xg] 5 . g]kfn 
/fi6« a}+ssf] :jLs[lt lnO 
cfjZostf cg';f/ zfvf, 
pkzfvf jf cGo sfof{no 
vf]nL sf/f]jf/ ug{ ;lsg] 5 .

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{          
-s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{no afudtL 
k|b]z sf7df8f}+ lhNnf 
a'9flgns07 gu/kflnsf 
j8f g+=* df /xg] 5 . g]kfn 
/fi6« a}+ssf] :jLs[lt lnO 
cfjZostf cg';f/ zfvf, 
pkzfvf jf cGo sfof{no 
vf]nL sf/f]jf/ ug{ ;lsg] 5 .

PsLs[t lgb]{zg g+=!&÷@)&( 
sf] $      -ª_ -*_ df 
ePsf] Aoj:yf cg'?ksf 
dfkb08x? k"/f eO;s]sf]n]  
;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ -s]Gb|Lo_ 
sfof{no sf7df8f}+ pkTosf 
leq :yfgfGt/0f ug{ dgfl;j 
b]lvPsf] .
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zfvf k|d'vx¿

Amrita Paudel Koirala
Harkapur Branch 
Nawalparasi East

9817729606

Saroj Shrestha
Parewatar Branch

Dhading
9810043873

Leela Kumari Bharati 
Ambhajang Branch, Mak-

wanpur
9801510738

Baidhanath Prasad Yadav
Rupnagar Branch, Saptari	

9814716826

Janak Upadhyaya
Phattepur Branch, Banke	

9860012178

Laxman Sah Teli
Motisar Branch, Bara

9814217225

Siddha Raj Regmi
Oralibazar Branch, Bardiya	

9849216328

Nar Bahadur Bista
Rakam Branch, Dailekh

9868426821

Asmita Mishra
Ranigaun Branch, Tanahu

9816673699

Tara Prasad Jaisi
Shankhamul Branch

Salyan
9811024201

Santosh Kumar Yadav
Fattepur Branch, Saptari 

9814777273

Ram Nath Mahara
Haripur Branch, Sarlahi

9805924894

Rovan Yadav
Motipur Branch, Rupandehi

9805939755

Gyanendra Joshi
Dullu Branch, Dailekh

9812600770

Ekanand Neupane
Mehelkuna Branch, 

Surkhet
9869780334

Gopal Oli
BotechourBranch, Surkhet

9748737663

Yam Kumar Limbu
Ektin Branch, Panchthar

9862635327

Santosh Pahadi
Kalauni Branch, Rupandehi

9845223020

Radhe Krishna Yadav
Manalgawa Branch, Sarlahi

9844271893

Ram Naresh Sah
Bhalbadi Branch, 

Rupandehi
9845308679

Manoj Kumar Pandit
Attariya Branch, Kailali

9868543298

Akendra Prasad Adhikari
Khajura Branch, Banke

9848625023

Khima Oli
Kohalpur Branch, Banke	

9846862962

Hariprasad Sharma 
Bharatpokhri Branch, Kaski

9848227917

Kalpana Lama
Ugratara Branch, Kavre

9801533479

Om Prakash Yadav
Ramgopalpur Branch

Mahottari	 9825280915

Pradip Raut
Sapahi Branch, Bara

9840596070

Sima Chaudhary Tharu
Kopuwa Branch, 

Kapilbastu
9806965215

Jhuma Oli
Holeri Branch, Rolpa

9867405087

Dhani Ram Dangi 
Goltakuri Branch, Dang

9841385889

Janaki Kumari Khatri 
Dodhara Chandni,

Kanchanpur
9819577687

Shashikala Kumari
Chaudhary

Chimdi Branch, Sunsari
9862835452

Punam Kumari Yadav
Sarpallo Branch, Mahottari

9824799099

Dayanand Sah
Parsauni Branch, Parsa

9819226286

Lal Bahadur Chand
Shantibazar Branch, Bardiya

9868797039

Ritu Blon
Basantapur Branch, 

Chitwan
9816264515

Santoshi Budha
Libang Branch, Rolpa	

9860716559

Raju Sharma
ArunKhola Branch, 
Nawalparasi East

9810933156

Rina Shrestha
Bhakunde Branch, Lamjung

9856046602

Upendra prasad Yadav
Loharpatti Branch, 

Mohottari
9845060290

Man Bahadur Dangi
Jiri Branch, Dolakha

9806263063

Aaratee Bhandari
Gaidakot Branch, 

Nawalparasi 
East9825448623

Samiksha Lamikshane
Ghasikuwa Branch, Tanahu

9845651534

Amiri Kumar Yadav
Golbazar Branch, Siraha

9818888113

Ram Prakash Yadav
Barsain Branch, Saptari

9864024370

Arjun Raj Gautam
Shivnagar Branch, Chitwan

9851181706

Pradip Kumar Chaudhary
Langadi Branch, Parsa

9865194183

Gautam Jha
Sundarpur Branch, Morang

9865284444

Bhola Kumar Yadav
Jaleshowar Branch, 

Mahottari
9840688655

Bipen Yakha
Jitpur Branch, Dhankuta

9864698403

Narayani Thapa
Hakui Branch, Nawalparasi	

9847544625

Balram Kumar Yadav
Dhangadi Branch, Siraha

9863874590

Keshab Raj Pokhrel
Belauri Branch, Kanchanpur

9847906008

Sanjaya Kumar Yadav
Tinkoriya Branch, Dhanusha

9865071630

Ram Sundar Yadav
Gausala Branch, Mahottari	

9863012580

Devi Maya Gurung
Saranamati Branch, Jhapa

9813534550

Shyam Sundar Rai
Tedha Branch,  Parsa

9764252020

Santosh Kumar Yadav
Bhagwanpur Branch, Siraha

9863000059

Pramod Kumar Yadav
Madhupatti Branch, Saptari

9819920736

Pankaj Kumar Yadav
Bindhi Branch, Dhanusha

9862937570

Debendra Kumar Yadav
Bariyarpati Branch, Siraha	

9814750726

Bal Bahadur Karki
Birtamod Branch, Jhapa	

9842700085

Dilip Kumar Rai
Bhadrapur Branch, Jhapa	

9860414444

Pritha Sing Khatri
Goldhap Branch, Jhapa

9852029082

Prakash Devkota
Geta Branch, Kailali

9848109794
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Shakti Kiran Rijal
Taplejung Branch, Taplejung

9804962496

Bhakta Narayan Chaudhary
Bouniya Branch, Kailali	

9847558403

Jay Kumar Lama
Phaparbari Branch, Mak-

wanpur
9842925401

Anchal Chaudhary
Lamki Branch, Kailali

9868551299

Hariram Chaudhary
Deauri Branch, Udaypur

9814382699

Anusha Shrestha
Bhimad Branch, Tanahu	

9806532951

Arun Adhikari
Inaruwa Branch, Sunsari	

9816969977

Ashish Chaudhary
Kharendrapur Branch, 

Kapilbastu
9809727371

Atindra Raj Kafle
Nawalpur Branch, Sarlahi	

9814884120

Bimal Pokhrel
Pattharkot Branch, 

Kapilbastu
9806740758

Dambar Limbu
Chhanumber Budhabare 

Branch, Dhankuta
9807384991

Damudar Gautam
Chhahare Branch, Nuwakot

9845358525

Deepak Bist
Bhatkanda Branch, 

Dadeldhura 
9809417090

Devaki Shrestha
Dharke Branch, Dhading	

9840068222

Dhruba Kumari Gurung
Ramailo Branch, Morang

9817924454

Dipesh Kumar Chaudhary	
Kishan Nagar Branch, 

Mahottari	 9817343789

Gokul Shrestha
Devghat Branch, Tahanu

9803565186

Hari Nanda Rajbanshi
Jhorahat Branch, Morang

9807976877

Junul Rai
Pahkhribas Branch, 

Dhankuta
9816367870

Kalpana Chaulagain
Aurabani Branch, Sunsari	

9816392533

Kedar Joshi
Katarniya Branch, Bardiya	

9825693951

Krishna Prasad Baskota
Khaireni Branch,

Rupandehi
9815019710

Man Bahadur Khatri
Chitlang Branch, Makwanpur

9812511220

Padam Bahadur Karki
Dhulabari Branch, Jhapa	

9842655706

Pratik Adhikari
Deurali Branch, Gorkha 

9843245500

Rabina Kumari Chaudhary	
Dhrubatole Branch, 

Nawalparasi
9825720907

Remisma Rai
Beltar Branch, Udaypur

9805900959

Renu Jabegu 
Tharpu Branch, Panchthar	

9862621747

Sabin Neupane
Gorkha Branch, Gorkha

9843100174

Santi Rai 
Shivagunj Branch, Jhapa

9807952428

Saroj Bahadur Thapa
Nijgadh Branch, Bara

9807184207

Saroj Shrestha 
Majhimtar Branch, Dhading

9823466215

Shankar Bahadur Karki
Katari Branch, Udaypur

9825712469

Shima Pathak
Budhabare Branch, Jhapa

9814929430

Sundar Rajbanshi
Itahara Branch, Morang

9806030080

Surendra Kumar Chaudhary
Sarra Branch, Dang

9824731853

Tej Kumari Bishwakarma
Letang Branch, Morang

9815936979

Tek Nath Adhikari
Kolbung Branch, Ilam

9817989393

Yasoda Karki
Jorpati Branch, Dhankuta

9804371981

Sitala Chhatkulli Adhikari
Dhadingbesi, Dhading

9843754077

Bhogendra Prasad Yadav
Katahariya Branch, 

Rautahat
9866319408

Aarati Yonjan
Padampokhari Branch, 

Makwanpur
9842996036

Amrita Chaudhary
Balchanpur Branch, 

Rautahat
9847303303

Gyanendra Kumar Ray
Patobazar Branch, Saptari

9842123503

Anaruddha Teli
Telgha Branch, Palpa

9866965511

Rajesh Kumar Singh
Haripurwa Branch, Sarlahi	

9804802078

Girija Prasad Ghimire
Dandabas Branch, 

Makwanpur
9848000700

Ram Kumar Shrestha
Rangapur Branch, Parsa	

9742220375

Shiv Raj Joshi
Sitala Branch, Bardiya

9848521840

Ramesh Ram Od
Mirdi Branch, Syanja

9814692503

Udit NarayanThapamagar 
Pipari Branch,  Dang

9847971277

Dipendra Basnet
Bankatuwa Branch, Banke	

9860315065

Bamkrishna Oli
Baghchour Branch, Salyan	

9810895052

Ashlok Giree
Raksirang Branch, 

Makwanpur
9845809431

Gopal Acharya
Phidim Branch, Panchthar	

9823127395

Dipesh Kumar Goit
Charaali Branch, Jhapa

9862943365

Deepak Prasad Khanal
Patarasi Branch, Jumla	

9868005813

Anupama Kharel
Bharoul Branch, Sunsari	

9817910640

Bharat Bhandari
Ilam Branch, Ilam

9814026266

Kamal Panta
Jalpa Branch, Kathmandu	

9866014520

Jiwan Neupane
Rajarani Branch, Dhankuta	

9825385738

Kabita Dhakal
Urlabari Branch, Morang	

9804983599

Madhusudan Khanal
Panchami Branch, Panchthar

9814096557

Nabin Sapkota
Bahuni Branch, Morang	

9814994721

Nabin Niroula
Sakhejung Branch, Ilam	

9814990181

Narayan Khanal
Mainamaini Branch, 

Udaypur
9810103783

Puja Chudal
Dharan Branch, Sunsari	

9810410396

Ramesh Rijal
Danabari Branch, Ilam

9816340502

Sarmila Devi Bishwakarma	
Biratchowk Branch,  Morang

9817027220

Sanjaya Kumar Yadav
Barahathawa Branch, Sarlahi

9809144553
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Debki Bhatt
Sipadol Branch,

Bhaktapur
9849099219

Shyam Kumari Yadav
Bishnupur Branch, Saptari	

9866884166

Jamun Prasad Yadav 
Gauribas Branch

Mahottari
9805933365

Pratima Dhakal 
Goganpani Branch 

Dhading
9843811795

Ramesh Prasad Pandit
Rajpur Branch, Rautahat

9845264656

Bishnu Kumar Paswan
Aakhisalla Branch, Dhankuta

9845789421

Bishnumaya Shrestha
Kispang Branch, Nuwakot	

9857077212

Birendra Kumar Yadav
Sabaila Branch, Dhanusha	

9812032020

Hari Prasad Upadhaya 
Masuriya Branch, Kailali

9868463154

Bhawana Chaulagain
Khandichaur

Branch Sindhupalanchok
9812130636

Lokesh Kumar Yadav 
Lawkatol Branch, Siraha

9819766361

Binod Kumar Yadav 
Phulbaria Branch, Siraha

9819767541

Amit Kumar Tiwari 
Dharapani Branch 

Dhanusha
9862922567

Durganand Yadav 
Katahari Branch,

Morang
9801521242

Binod Sah
Pheta Branch, Bara

9845115866

Bhuwaneshori Saru
Pokharathok Branch, Palpa

9867868040

Bimala Kumari Chaudhary
Majhitaar Branch, Sindhuli	

9817747455 

Rajesh Raut
Pokharia Branch, Parsa

9814219429

Bhogendra Kumar Yadav
Rupni Branch, Saptari

9762731806

Jayaram Mahato Koiri
Kudia Branch, Nawalparasi

9816763958

Raj Kumar Chaudhary
Kerkha Branch, Jhapa

9809622920

Upendra Yadav
Godaita Branch, Sarlahi

9849963512

Rajina Budhamagar
Khungri Branch, Rolpa

9866530934

Sher Bahadur Kuwar
Aathbiskot Branch, Rukum	

9748565629

Usha Bantha Magar
Ghartigaun Branch, Rolpa	

9866744626

Samjhana Puri
Lahalaura Branch, Dang

9810911781

Kalpana Khadka
Doramba Branch, Ra-

mechhap
9842972330

Mahan Bir Shahi
Nagma Branch, Kalikot

9848305926

Sushil Basnet
Serigaun Branch, Rukum

9809803414

Dilli Raj Budhathoki
Amra Branch, Salyan

9868661067

Gauri Shankar Ray Yadav
Sukdevchok Branch, 

Rautahat
9845099995

Dhirendra Sah
Subarnapur Branch, Parsa	

9804870719

Ashok Kumar Harijan
Beluwa Branch, 

Nawalparasi East
9826499877

Krishna Raj Uapdhayay
Jhalari Branch, Kanchanpur

9848980966

Birendra Prasad Rajbansi
Amardaha Branch, Morang	

9807340254

Ram Prasad Bhattarai
Bethari Branch, Rupandehi	

9819828455

Nikesh Gelal
Jogidaha Branch, Udaypur	

9842805934 

Manojprashad Adhikari 
Pashupatinagar Branch, 

Ilam
9825774848

Lal Bahadur Oli 
Jaluke Branch, Arghakhachi

9847933075

g]zgn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, ag]kf–!), sfe|]knf~rf]s

;fdflhs ultljlw

Mina Rizal
Sudha Branch, Kanchanpur

9848561408

Sanjay Rai Yadav
Santapur Branch,

Rautahat
9845496904

Umeslal Baitha 
Simraungadh Branch, Bara

9845076074

Abdesh Kumar Yadav
Joginia Branch Saptari

9842617355
Auyash Regmi

Kalimati Branch, Tanahu
9843875913

Binu Muktan
Chakmakebazar Branch, 

Sindhuli
9862102585

Reshuka Thing 
Bhatedada Branch, 

Lalitpur 
9861145278

Srijana K.C.
Okharpauwa Branch, 

Nuwakot
9848745014

Duryodhan Gharti
Thawang Branch, Rolpa

9868607587

Rajeshwor Thapa Chhetri	
Parsa Branch, Chitwan	

9828990265
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